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Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital

1.1 Historical Facts

Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital, a gift by the Government of Japan to the citizens of Sri Lanka, on an
initiative of His Excellency J. R. Jayewardene, the first executive president of Sri Lanka, was ceremonially opened by
Ishimaysu Kitaagawa, the representative of Japan and the President of Sri Lanka on 17th September 1984.

Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital was established by the Act of Parliament No. 54 of 1983. The primary
intention of establishing Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital was to provide excellent medical and surgical
services compared to other government hospitals, at affordable prices to the public.

The first Board of Directors appointed by the then Minister of Teaching Hospitals and Women's Affairs on 23rd
February 1985 consisted of Dr. RB.J. Peiris (Chairman), Dr. D.D. Samarasinghe (Ministry Representative), S.P.
Chandradasa (Representative of Ministry of Finance), K.N. Choksy (President’s Counsel), M.T. Fernando (Chartered
Accountant), Dr. Malinga Fernando (Director General of Health Services) and Dr. S.A. Cabraal (Director - PGIM) and
K.D.L. Rathnasena (Secretary). The first Board Meeting was held on 28th February 1985.

First patient was admitted to the hospital on 17" December 1984, under the care of Dr. H. H. R. Samarasinghe
(Consultant Physician) and the first surgery in the hospital, a thyroidectomy was performed by Dr. K. Yoheswaran
(Consultant Surgeon) with anaesthesia administered by Dr. K. A. Perera (Consultant Anaesthetist) on 17" January
1985. First delivery was on 18" January, 1985 under the care of Prof. Kingsley de Silva (Consultant Obstetrician and
Gynaecologist).

Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital was setup to supplement the curative health service in Sri Lanka and to assist
in the training of medical undergraduates, postgraduates and other health care personnel. While the Board of
Directors take policy decisions, operational control is vested on a Committee of Management. Financing of the
operations and capital equipment is through a grant from the General Treasury and revenue generated by the
hospital.

This modern Hospital has now functioned over thirty eight years and has maintained the state of excellence
expected and has developed continuously by acquiring most of the modern medical facilities.
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1.2 Corporate Governance

Remuneration of Board Members

The remuneration of the Chairman and The Board Members is on the basis of the Public Enterprises Circular
NO.PED 04 of 01.01.2003.

The Committee of Management

The Committee of Management under the chairmanship of the Managing Director consists of the members as
per SJGH Act, and administers the day to day affairs of the hospital and carry out an advisory function to the
Board.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee functions under the chairmanship of Treasury representative to the Board and consists of

two other Non-executive Board members. The Audit Superintendent from the Auditor General's Department
participates on invitation as an observer for Audit Committee meetings. The audit committee supervisors and
facilitates the functions of the Internal Auditor and coordinates the functions between the Internal and External
Auditors.

Audit committee provides an Audit report to the main board quarterly. The committee is empowered to oversee
and exercise due diligence and control over the financial aspects, operational and performances of the hospital.
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1.3 Vision and Mission

Vision

To be the best
leading tertiary health care provider
in the South Asia
in year 2030.

Mission

“To maintain
exceptional, safe ,ethical and quality standards,
while offering
cost effective healthcare solutions
with modern technology,
and to deliver undergraduate and postgraduate education

in medical and allied health sciences”
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1.4 Our Strengths

e High reputation and long standing impressive image with highly
qualified, experienced, competent and dedicated medical, nursing and
technical staff.

e Drive power and responsibility from a Parliamentary Act ( No. 54 of
1983).

e Well designed building complex with comprehensive facilities with
provisions for further expansion.

e Empowered by technical assistance with modern medical and surgical
equipment and high standard laboratory facilities to provide patient
care, staff training , medical education and research.

e Substantial financial contribution from the general Treasury through the
Ministry of Health and autonomy to deal with financial and
administrative matters independently.

e Ability to provide patient care in a wide range of medical and surgical
subspecialties at very competitive rates compared to
other private institutions.
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1.5 Our Expectations

e To be a global standard in health care according to a Corporate Plan.
e To be a State of the Art facility.

e To be affordable to the public.

e To Provide Health care of international standards.

e To continue training of Undergraduates & Post Graduates.

e To be Adequately & competently staffed in all areas.

e To generate Revenue while been affordable to the public.

e To honour the rights and benefits of the staff who are employees of
the Ministry of Health.
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1.6 Hospital Staff

Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital Consists 1874 staff members.

EXECUTIVE STAFF

ARY WPPROVELRVAILABLY MALE ||

i Jeove | cavms | came |
CHAIRMAN _ 1
DIRECTOR SL3 1 1 g
DEPUTY DIRECTOR (Covering up) SL3 1 1 1
SECRETARY SL1 1 0 0
BOARD SECRETARY 1 1
ACCOUNTANT SL1 1 1 1
INTERMNAL AUDITOR SL1 1 1 1
CHIEF MATRON MT& 1 1 1
ASSISTANT ACCOUNTANT SL1 2 2 2
SUPPLIES OFFICER SL1 1 1 1
_ASSISTANT SUPPLIES OFFICER{Assignment) 5L1 | 1 1
MATRON MT 3 3 3 3
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER (Assignment) MN7 1 1 1
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT MM 7 1 1 1
MEDICAL RECORD OFFICER MN 5 1 1 1
MAINTENANCE ENGINEER SL1 1 1 1
BIO-CHEMIST SL1 1
WELFARE OFFICER MN 4 1 1 1
IT SYSTEM ADMINISTRATOR sL1 1
BIO - MEDICAL ENGINEER SL1 1 1 1
CIVIL ENGINEER SL1 1 0
MARKETING MANAGER 0 0
FOOD AND BEVERAGE MANAGER 0 0
Total 2 19 11 B'

MEDICAL STAFF

COMSULTANT

GENERAL PHYSICIAN

GENERAL SURGEON

OBS & GYNAECOLOGIST

FAEDIATRICIAN

EYE SURGEON

CARDIOTHORACIC SURGEON

ORTHOPAEDIC SURGEON

OTOLARYNGOLOGIST (ENT SURGEON)

CARDIOLOGIST

L Rl N Rl Il LS R S

ANAESTHETIST

HISTO PATHOLOGIST

i | g | =2

RADIOLOGIST

NEPHROLOGIST - Covering Up

) k| | WY

et i | e | Tk | e
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1.6 Hospital Staff —Continue

HAEMATOLOGIST
NEANATOLOGIST
MICROBIOLOGIST
RHEUMATOLOGIST

NEURO SURGEON

NEURO PHYSICIAN
DERMATOLOGIST

TRANSFUTION MEDICINE
ELECTRO CARDIO PHYSIOLOGIST
UROLOGIST.

ENDOCRINOLOGIST
ONCOLOGIST

PLASTIC SURGEON

PAEDIATRIC SURGEON
PULMONOLOGIST

CHEMICAL PATHOLOGIST
V.P.OPD.

INTERVENTIONAL RADIOLOGIST
\ESIDENT SPECIALIST SL3 10
Total )

=l lolao|laol—=]—<]|=]=<]=]—=]—~]—~]~] =]~
—

&
B
B

MEDICAL OFFICERS

PERMANENT

98
CONTRACT 50 2 28
GOV. ANNUAL TRANSFER/SECONDMENT K| 15 16
INTERN MEDICAL OFFICERS Al 7 14 27

20
28
142

POST INTERN MEDICAL OFFICERS #1 | 411

P.GIM 73 J 45
Total 180 11 69

TARA MEDICAL STAFF

Bl - ‘::J"' # boy :

SPEECH THERAPIST MT 6 1 1 1

CHIEF PHARMACIST MT 8 1

PHARMACISTS MTé6 20 17 9 8
CHEIF PHYSIOTHERAPIST MT8 1 1 1
PHYSIOTHERAPIST MT 6 12 11 6 5
CHIEF RADIOGRAFPHER MT8 1 1 1
RADIOGRAPHERS MT 6 2 12 7 5
CHIEF Medical Laboratory Technologist MT8 1 1 1

MEDICAL LABORATORY TECHNOLOGIST MT 6 38 29 15 14
MLT - Assigment Basis 2 1 1
THEATRE TECHNICIAN MT2 6 4 4

10
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1.6 Hospital Staff —Continue

BIO MEDICAL TECHNOLOGIST MM 3 8 5 5
CARDIOGRAPHER (Per.11 } MT4 14 9 2 7
EEG TECHNICIAN MT4 1] 1 1

P.H.I MT5 2 2 2
OFTHALMIC TECHNOLOGIST MT 6 4

AUDIOMETRICIAN MT® 2 1 1
PERFUSIONIST MN 5 3 2 1 1
OCCUPATIONAL THERAPIST 1 0

Total 13 99 56 43

NURSING STAFF

=

NURSING SISTER

27 7
STAFF NURSING - PERMANENT MT7 650 564 37 527
- Contract 2 1 1
- TEM. ATTACHED n 5 28
- ASSIGNMENT 1 1
STUDENT NURSES 200 77 77
Total 880 702 43 659

CLERICAL & ALLIED SERVICE

CHIEF CASHIER
MANAGEMENT ASSISTANT (MN 2) MN 2 112 55 12 43
MANAGEMENT ASST, (MN 1)+CAGHIER MN1 » 80 10 50
CONFIDENTIAL SECRETARY MN7 1 1 1
ASSISTANT MEDICAL RECORD OFFICER MN4 1 1 1
TORE KEEPER MT 2 -] 4 3 1

AUDIT ASSISTANT MT 2 4 2 2
PLANNING ASSISTANT MN 4 3 3 1 2
ICT ASSISTANT MT1 3 3 3
OTHER TRAINEE {9 1 {11 18 |
INTERN TRAINEE 10 1] 21 {8}
Total 152 129 ° 327 97
Managemenet Assistant MN2 112
Managemenet Assistant MN1 11
Ward Clerk 10
Cashier 1
Chief Cashier 1

135
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OTHER STAFF

1
T
L]

NUTRITIONIST MN 5 2 2 2
COUNSELLOR MN 5 1 1 1
LIBRARY ASSISTANT MN4 2 1 1
RECEPTIONIST MN 1 6 5 0 5
ELECTRIC &LJ-'{‘JREMAN MNT 1 1 1
BUILDING FOREMAN MN 7 1 0 0
B.M.T. FOREMAN MN7 1 1
BOILER MAN PL 3 3 1 1
SKILLED WORKERS 25 17 1

CARPENTERS (03) PL3 - 3

MASONS (02) PL3 1 1

PAINTERS (03) PL3 2 2

PLUMBERS  (03) PL3 2 2

ELECTRICIANS (12) PL3 8 8

WELDER (01) PL3 1 1

ALUMINIUM FABRICATOR (01) PL3 ]
HEF MN1 1
DIET STREWEARDESS MN1 7 7 1
SEAMSTRESS (Per 03 ) PL3 6 2
DRIVERS PL3 14 10 10
THREE WHEELER DRIVER PL3 2 1 1
HOUSE WARDEN MN1 7 b 1 5
TELEPHONE OPERATORS (Per-5, Con.1) PL 2 8 7 2 5
LAUNDRY SUPERVISORS MN1 1 0 0
COOKS (Per 11+ Contract 01) PL3 20 12 11 1
LAB ORDERLY PL3 17 10 4 b
Total 124 84 50 k2|
"RIMARY STAFF

ORDERLY SUPERVISORS

1 1
|ORDERLIES PL2 436 166 1m 65
DARK ROOM ORDERLY PL1 1
LABOURER (SK5) FL1 50 243 154 B9
SKS (Contract) 7 7
PHLEBOTOMIST PL2 4 4
Total 493 422 263 159

12
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SUMMARY
DESIGNATION
it gl
Executive Staff
Medical Staff(Consultants&Res Specialists) 60| 43 22 21
Medical Officers 180] 211 69 142
Para Medical Staff 136 99| 56 43
Nurstnﬁ Staff 880/ 702 43 659|
Clerical And Allied Service 152 129 2 97
Other Staff 124 84 50 34
Primary Staff 493 422 263 159
Total 2047 1709 546 1163
1709

Chairman 1
Intern MO 41
Post Intern 31
P.GIM, 73
Intern Trainee 10
Other Trainee 9
Total 1874

A —_—

13



Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital

14

1.7 Medical Specialty Units

Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital provides wide range of medical specialty services. Pa-
tients are offered services by a team of eminent and skilled specialists. The Specialty units

providing patient care at Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital are listed below

1.General Medicine

3.0Obstetrics & Gynecology

5.Anesthesiology

7.0phthalmology

9.Neurology

11.Cardio Electro physiology

13.Cardiology

15.0rthopaedics

17.Genitourinary and Kidney Transplant

19.Endocrinology

21.Microbiology

23.Chemical Pathology

25.Radiology

2.General Surgery

4.Pediatrics

6.Neonatalogy

8.0to-rhinolaryngology

10.Dermatology

12.Neurosurgery

14.Cardio Thoracic surgery

16.Nephrology

18.Rheumatology & Rehabilitation

20.Histopathology

22.Haematology

24 Blood bank and Transfusion medicine
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1.8 Our Services

Target of Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital is provide range of services to national and international

community under one roof with high quality and reasonable rates.

1

.General Medicine

Patient Care services

2.General Surgery

5. ICU (Intensive Care Unit)
General ICU

3

. OPD-Out Patient Treatment (8.00am —4.00 pm)

Neurosurgical
Cardiology

4. Specialized Clinics in all Specialties

Cardio thoracic

[©)

.HDUs' (High Dependency Units)

Pediatrics
Neurosurgical
Cardiology
Cardio thoracic
General Medicine
Gynecology

7. Medical Checkup Unit— Variety of Medical Checkup packag-
es available

9

. Radiology Services
Mammography
X —ray
Ultra Sound Scan
Computer Tomography (CT)
DSA Angiograms
VP
Barium Studies.
CT Guided Biopsy
CT Angiograms.
Doppler Scans.
HSG.
Special Examinations
FNACUS Biopsy
Dexa scan
MRI scan

8.Laboratory services

Blood bank and Transfusion medicine
Hematology

Biochemistry

Microbiology

Histopathology Chemical Pathology

10.Cardiology Investigation 11.Neurology Investiga-
e ECG Tests tion

e Exercise ECG e EMG Tests

e Halter Monitoring

e Angiography and Cardiac
Catheterization

e 2 DEcho

e Electro-cardio physiology

e EEG Tests

12. Endoscopy services (UGIE,LGIE)

13. Urological treatment services

14. ENT related tests

15. Vision and related tests

16. Nutrition advisory services and consultation

18. Psychological Counseling Services

1

9. Speech Therapy services

2

0. Supportive services
Blood Transfusion Services

Chanel Service

Health Education
Immunization

Infection Control Service

Birth & Death Registration
Pharmacy -(24 h service)
Emergency Ambulance Service

17 Physiotherapy services

Other Services

e Banks (BOC,HNB)

e Automated Teller Machine (BOC, HNB, Peo-
ples ,Commercial )

o (Cafeteria

o Post Office

e Vehicle Park

e Grocery Shop

e Paying machines

15
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1.9 Our Website

info@sjghsrilanka.lk

SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA (GENERAL HOSPITAL AND %
@ S]GH PosT-GRADUATE TRAINING INSTITUTE [ Susc English Tamil |3

Thalapathpitiya, Nugegoda, 5ri Lanka. Tel:+94112778610
About SJCH General Info Patient Services Clinical Specialties Support Services

JOIN SJGH NOW
~ W
: “A Breath of Fresh Air”

S]GH is 2 modern setting in salubrious surroundings where one travels that extra mile,
while taking in the panorama of change to meet an extraordinary array of health care
professionals who are committed to healing the mind, bodv and soul of those in need.

“Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital official Website”
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Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital

2.1 Chairman’s Message

Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital and Postgraduate Medical Training Centre established in 1984 as
state owned enterprise serving the nation with overcoming the emerging health challenges and full fill-
ing the customer expectations.

Back to normal after the Covid-19 Pandemic was a major Challenge to us as performing the routine
work while tasking measure to prevent the spread of disease.

As a team with great unity and commitment our Board of Management, all the consultants and the staff
worked hard to achieve this goal overcoming the obstacles.

As the Chairman of Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital | take this as an opportunity to give my grati-
tude to Hon. Minister of Health, Hon. State Minister of Health, Secretary of Health, and Health Ministry
for making our journey a success.

Also | think all the stakeholders who involved making this annual health report a productive one.
Thank you

Chairman

Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital & Postgraduate Medical Training Centre

18
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2.2 Director’s Message

As the Director of Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital it is my pleasure and privilege to deliver this
message to the annual report of year 2022.

As it is known by all, year 2022 was still affected drastically by the global pandemic. The situation was
further exacerbated by the financial uncertainties the country was facing.

Amidst all negatives of the global pandemic, Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital paved its way for-
ward gracefully and effectively to meet the challenge. We accommodated all patients who sought treat-
ment at the hospital, ensured all clinic patients received their medicines in time, continued all essential
surgeries and procedures, established a new ICU with self —funds to cater to increase ICU equipment
that emerged in the country, participated at the national COVID 19 immunization campaign providing
free immunization to the public and ensured our greater asset the employees well being in the mean-
time.

As the director of the hospital | mention | with immense gratitude and appreciation towards the dedi-
cated staff who were with me through think and thin with never say no attitude, during those trying
times.

Coming years would be more challenging in the aftermath of the pandemic and amidst economic un-
certainties. But | am certain that staff and our patients together will overcome any challenge thrown to-
wards us as we so commendably proved by facing the global pandemic.

| congratulate the tireless efforts behind this annual report by the staff of SJGH and would pledge my
fullest support and dedication towards achieving the vision and mission of SJGH and making it a bench-
mark in Sri Lanka health care industry.

Dr. Rathnasiri A. Hewage
Director
Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital & Postgraduate Medical Training Centre

19
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2.3 Board of Directors-2022

Pro.S.D.Jayarathne- Chairman- ,SJGH

Dr. R. A. Hewage- Director, SJGH

Dr.Asela Gunawardhana-Director General of Health Service

Prof.Senaka Rajapakshe- Director—PGIM

Mr. J.R.C. Jayathilake- Treasury Representative (Untill 24/02/2022)

Ms. K. A. Ramya Kanthi- Treasury Representative( From 13/10/2022)
Mr.Chandrarathne Pallegama- Health Ministry Representative (from 18/10/2022)
Mr.Bhashwara Gunarathne— Board Member Until 28/04/2022)

Mr.N. Manjula Weerakkody— Board Member (Until 28/04/2022)
Dr.Wimal Karadagoda- Board Member(Since 18/10/2022)

Mr.Rukmal Cooray- Board Member(Since 18/10/2022)

Dr V.K.P. Indrarathna- Consultant Representative (Until 28/04/2022)
Dr.P.J. Abbawatta- Consultant Representative (Until 28/04/2022)

Dr.A. Kapuruge - Consultant Representative (Until 28/04/2022)
Dr.(Ms)C.C.Kariyawasam -Consultant Representative (Since 18/10/2022)
Dr.H.R.Y.De Silva -Consultant Representative ((Since 18/10/2022)

Dr.W.G.R.CK. Sirisena -Consultant Representative (Since 18/10/2022)
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2.4 Management Committee-2022

Dr. Rathnasiri Hewage - Director, SIGH
Dr. C.Ranasinghe -Deputy Director, SIGH (From August)
Dr.K.V.CJanaka - Consultant Physician(up to 10/08/2022)
Dr. S.A.Gunawardana - Consultant General Surgeon (up to 10/08/2022)
Dr. (Mrs) Maheshi Wijeratne - Consultant Neuro Surgeon (up to 10/08/2022)
Mr. D Totawatta - Accountant
Mrs.A.N.Saputhanthri - Chief Nursing Officer
Mrs. S. Hadapangoda-Administrative Officer
Dr. Jagath Herath-Consultant Cardiology-(from19/10/2022)
Dr. Mrs. S Rupasinghe-Consultant ENT -(from19/10/2022)

Dr.B.Abeywickrama-Consultanat Radiology- (from19/10/2022)

21
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2.5 Specialist Staff

Name of Consultant Specialty Unit

1 |Dr. V. K P.Indraratne Anaesthesia Theater
MBBS, MD, FFARCSI, FRCA

2 |Dr.A.B.S. A Perera Orthopaedic Ward10
MBBS, MS, FRCS,FCSLL

3 |Dr.D. H. H. Wariyapola Ophthalmology Ward16
MBBS,MSOPH, DO(COL), FRCS,

4 | Dr.(Mrs.) N. L. Amarasena Cardiology Ward19
MBBS, MD (Colombo), FRCP
(London),FCCP,FRACP (HON)

5 |Dr. (Mrs.) M. Weerasekara Neonatology NICU
MBBS, DCH, MD (Pead.), MRCP (UK)

6 |Dr. C.E.de Silva General Medicine Ward12
MBBS, MD, MRCP (UK),FCCP

7 |Dr. A.D. Kapuruge Cardiothoracic Surgery Ward20
MBBS, MS, FRCS)

8 |Dr.K. Cassim Rheumatology Ward 16A
MBBS, MD

9 Dr. (Mrs.) M.S. Wijerathne Neuro-Surgery Ward18
MBBS (Hons), Melb, FRCS (Ed.)

10 |Dr. H. H. Gunesekara Neurology Ward16A
MBBS(Col), MD(Col), MRC(UK),FRCP

11 | Dr. S.AD.N. Pilapitiya Nephrology Ward 21

12 | Dr.D.M.M.Manamperi Paediatrics Ward 01

13 |Dr. P.J. Ambawatta Histopathology Path Lab
MBBS, (Col). Path.(Col), MD Pathology(Col)

14 | Dr. AS. Rodrigo Histopathology Path lab
MBBS, MD (HistoPathology

22
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Name of Consultant Specialty Unit

15| Dr. (Mrs.) J. S. K. Rajasinghe Anaesthesia Theatre
MBBS, MD ,FRCA (UK)

16 | Dr. S.M.G. Karunarathne Obstetric and Gy- Ward 02
MBBS, MS(SL), FSLCOG(UK) , FRCOG, naecology

17 | Dr. J.I. P. Herath Cardiology Ward 19
MBBS, MD

18 | Dr. (Mrs.) D.S. Ariyawansa Dermatology Ward 07
MBBS, MD (Dermatology)

19 | Dr.(Mrs.)N.M.P.K. Arambepola Herath Radiology X-Ray
MBBS, MD (Radiology)

20 | Dr. (Ms.) C.C. Kariyawasam Haematology Haematology
MBBS, Dip. Path., MD (Haematology) Unit

21 |Dr. (Mrs.) S. K. Jayathilake Microbiology Microbiology
MBBS, Dip. Medical Micro., MD (Medical Microbiology)

22 |Dr.(Mrs.) R. P. S. Palihawadana Anaesthesia Theater
MBBS, MD ,FRCA (UK)

23 | Dr.(Mrs.)R.M.S.T.Samaraweera Radiology X-Ray
MBBS, MD (Radiology)

24 |Dr. H.R. Y. de Silva Cardiothoracic Sur- Ward 20

MBBS, MS, MRCS (Eng), FRCS(Cardiothorasic) gery

25 | Dr. (Mrs.) AAM.Abeywardane Transfusion Medicine Blood Bank
MBBS, DTM,MD (Transfution Medicien)

26 | Dr. S. A. Gunawardana Surgery Ward 08
MBBS, MS, MRCS (Eng.)FRCS(Glasy)

27 | Dr.(Mrs.) S.A.S.P. Subasinghe General Medicine Ward 17
MBBS(Col)Hons, MD (SL)

28 | Dr, L. N. Senavirathna Urology and Kidney Ward 14 A
MBBS (Col), MS (SL), MRCS (UK) Transplantation

29 [ Dr. (Mrs.) C.R. Pilimatalawwe Anaesthesia Theater
MBBS, MD (Anaesthesiology)

30 |Dr. P.P.C.Prageeth Anaesthesia Theater
MBBS, MD (Anaesthesia), FRCA (UK

31 |Dr.K.V.CJanaka General Medicine WD 06
MBBS, MD, MSC(Diabetis & Endocrinology)MRCP(Endo)

23
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Name of Consultant Specialty Unit

32 | Dr.K.G.Karunaratne Orthopaedics Ward 11 A
MBBS.MD,MRCS(Engd)

33 | Dr.(Mrs.)F.S.Maleen Obstetric & Gynaecol- Ward 09
MBBS India),MD(Obs & Gyn), ogy

34 | Dr. N.Vithanage Chemical Pathology Path Lab
MBBS, Diploma in Pathology, MD (Chemical Patholo-
9y)

35 |Dr. (Mrs.) RASTRupaSIngha Otorhinolaryngolo_ Ward 11
MBBS(Col), MD ,ORL(Col), DOHNS(Edin)),MRCF( UK) gy

36 |Dr. S.R.P. Kottegoda Cardio - Electro Physi- Ward 19
MBBS, MD ology

37 | Dr.(Mrs)D.T.Muthukuda Endocrinologist Endocrinology
MBBS,MD(Col), MRCP(UK) Unit

38 | Dr.(Mrs)D.K.Y.Abeywardana Radiology X-ray
MD(Radiology)MBBS

39 | Dr.(Mrs)S.B.T.M.D.S.Tennakoon Otolaryngology Ward 11
MBBS,DFM,MRCP(Eng),MD-
ORL,Head&Neck(Colombo)

40 [Dr.M.S.G.Perera Pulmonology Ward -07
MBBS, MD

41 |Dr.B.N.Abeywickrama Interventional Radiol- X-Ray
MD(Radiology)MBBS(COL) ogist

42 |Dr.W.G.R.CK. Sirisena Surgery Ward 15
MBBS.MS.MRCS.(Edinburgh)

43 |Dr.M.T.GJ.Kumara Surgery Ward 14

24
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3. Operational Information
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Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital

3.1 Summary of the Performance

§ coBtacs e edieg
B guangenyy Suiw st

Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital is established under the provision of Parliament act number 54
of 1983 and ceremonially opened on 17th of September 1984. Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital is
governed by a board of directors which is appointed by Hon. Minister of Health and act as a training
center for medical undergraduate and postgraduate trainees in addition to providing patient care
services.

In 2022 Number of staff members was .

Summary Appraved | Available | izl | Female
1709
Executive Staff 22 19 11 8 Chairman 1
Medical Staff (con.& R 21 Intern MO 4
edical Staff (con.& Re sp.) 60 43 22 Post Intern 31
Medical Officers 180 211 69 142 P.G.I.M. 73
Para Medical Staff 136 99 56 43 Intern Trainee 10
Other Trainee 9
Nursing Staff 880 702 43 659
Clerical & Allied Services 152 129 32 97 Total 1874
Other Staff 124 84 50 34
Primary Staff 493 422 263 159
Total 2047 1709 546 1163
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The table below gives ,a comparative summery of the indicators of in and out patient care services is

given by the hospital .

Indicator 2022 2021 Increase/ De-

crease(%)

1. Number of Patient Beds 1008 958 5.22
2.Total Number of Patient Admissions 42633 39916 6.81
3. Average Length of Stay (Days) 4.6 4.8 -4.17
4. Hospital Bed Occupancy (%) 54.74 54.29 0.83

a. Bed Occupancy of General Wards(%) 54.03 54.02 0.02

b. Bed Occupancy of Paying Wards(%) 61.73 60.93 1.31
5. Number of Out Patient Department Visits 19537 13337 46.49
6. Number. of Emergency treatment Unit Visits 28576 25702 11.18
7. Total Number of Patients attended for Clinics 153143 136085 12.53
8. Total Number of Surgeries done 12436 10493 18.52
9. Number of Cardio Thoracic Surgeries done 664 616 7.79
10. Number of Kidney Transplants done 33 50 -34.00
11. Number of Dialysis done 5278 5637 -6.37
12. Number of Echo Cardiograms done 12081 11975 0.89
13.Number of Coronary angiogram Tests 1200 1330 -9.77
14.Number of Stress Tests 1063 960 10.73
15.Number of Deliveries 2144 2688 -20.24
16. Number of ECG Tests done 40059 34973 14.54
17.Number of EMG tests done 1043 1012 3.06
18. Number of X- ray Tests done 72488 56534 28.22
19.Number of CT studies 10966 9740 12.59
20.Number of Mammograms done 551 430 28.14
21.Number of Physiotherapy done 35068 27165 29.09
22.Number of Channel patients 7633 7446 2.51
23. Number of Refraction Tests done 554 283 95.76
24 .Number of Nutrition Advices given 1580 1744 -9.40
25. Number of Speech Therapies done 819 711 15.19
26. Number of Medical Check-ups 5515 1740 216.95
27. Number of Psychological counseling done 1758 1431 22.85
28. Number of Pathological tests done 1053566 1076751 -2.15
29.Total Number of endoscopy tests done 5239 4434 18.16
30.Total Number of Blood collection 4525 4833 -6.37
31.Total Number of deaths 721 813 -11.32

27



Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital

Following table shows the unit wise summary of in-patient care provided by Sri Jayewardenepura General Hos-
pital in 2022.

Patciept Increase/ Bed Increase/
Unit Admissions Decrease Occupancy (%) Decrease
2022 2021 %) 2022 2021 %)

Pediatric Unit 1867 803 132.50 | 48.78 19 156.74
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit 798 873 -8.59 | 59.01 65.62 -10.07
Gynecology and Obstetrics Unit 4284 4670 -8.27 | 64.21 53.34 20.38
General Medical Unit 13233 | 12862 2.88 | 80.09 78.76 1.69
Surgical Unit 6798 5097 3337 | 61.68 50.62 21.85
Orthopedic Unit 1704 1678 155 | 31.71 34.20 -7.28
Day Care 566 462 22.51 9.12 8.11 400.74
ENT Unit 985 826 19.25 | 17.55 34.70 -49.42
Urology Unit 1145 1163 -155| 75.26 64.87 16.02
Ophthalmology (Eye) Unit 1108 894 2394 | 48.11 40.61 18.47
Neurology Unit 524 517 135 | 48.84 56.28 -13.22
Neuro - surgical Unit 847 750 1293 | 80.04 43.02 86.05
Cardiology Unit 2464 2531 -2.65 | 46.25 77.26 -40.14
Cardio-thoracic 1148 1053 9.02 | 7047 4591 53.50
Nephrology Unit & Dialysis Unit 6641 6477 2.53 | 54.80 78.88 -30.53
Cardio-thoracic ICU 657 622 563 | 7047 86.07 -18.12
Intensive Care Unit 686 658 426 | 90.29 85.37 5.76
Paying ward —Class | 1563 1472 6.18 | 117.07 | 127.46 -8.15
Paying ward —Class I 4327 3576 21.00 | 50.94 46 10.74
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Following is the summary of the financial performance of Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital in year 2022

(Rs. '000) Increase / Decrease

Description 2022 S (R\S/é’lggo) l;e;]rece((r)}:)_
Income generated from operations 3131723 2,814,751 316,972 11.26
Government Grant —Recurrent 2280000 1,969,600 310,400 15.76
Other Income 64446 54,135 10,311 19.05
Other Operating Income (Interest) 18525 7,449 11,076 148.69
Capital Grant Amortization 516173 434,149 82,024 18.89
Total Income 6010867 5,280,084 730,783 13.84

0
Materials & Consumables used 1681749 1,589,293 92,456 5.82
Staff cost 3027085 3,023,950 3,135 0.10
Depreciation & amortization 516173 434,149 82,024 18.89
Other operating expenses 509218 448,434 60,784 13.55
Total expenses 5734225 5,495,826 238,399 4.34

0
Profit /Loss from operation (2003358) (215,742) -1,787,616 828.59
Finance cost 25589 30,619 -5,030 -16.43
Other expenses 3817 7,829 -4,012 -51.25
Profit /Loss before Taxation (2032765) (254,190) -1,778,575 699.70
Income tax 0 0
Profit /Loss after Taxation (2032765) (254,190) -1,778,575 699.70
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3.2 General Performance

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of beds in Hospital 1061 1065 1072 993 1008
Total No. of admissions 58949 62466 45976 39916 42633
No. of OPD Attendance 22992 23010 16307 13337 19537
No. of Clinic Attendance 182170 190716 138502 136085 153143
No. of Surgeries Performed 14601 14619 11804 10493 12436
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 66.28 69.33 52.40 54.29 54.74
No. of Neonatal deaths 23 17 10 14 13
Total No. of deaths 745 847 592 813 721
Hospital Income (Rs.millions ) 4142 4587 5011 4838 5476

Five year summery
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3.3 Sector Review

|. General Medical Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics Held 337 342 284 338 291
No. of Clinic Attendance 28480 28496 20831 19033 23358
Total No. of Admissions 16718 19752 12056 12862 13233
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 100.1 117.34 67.99 78.76 80.09
Five year summery
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25000 140
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ll. General Surgical Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics Held 378 352 284 325 328
No. of Clinic Attendance 15301 14479 11051 10279 13529
Total No. of Admissions 7745 7682 6639 5097 6798
Total no. of Surgeries 3513 3519 2916 2541 3007
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 61.50 58.68 52.96 50.62 61.68
Five year summery
No. of Clinic Attendance Bed Occupancy Rate (%
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Ill. Gynaecology and Obstetrics Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics Held 384 386 357 280 293
No. of Clinic Attendance 23785 23034 19513 17168 14903
Total No. of Admissions 7590 7542 6352 4670 4284
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 76.65 71.40 79.98 53.34 64.21
No. of Deliveries 3576 3444 3232 2688 2553
Gyn surgeries 1249 1149 1064 897 957
Obs surgeries 1765 1772 1532 1107 819
No. of caesarian surgeries 1920 1832 1688 1351 1095
Five year summery
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V. Pediatric Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics Held 387 466 426 360 372
No. of Clinic Attendance 7820 7912 5124 2636 3472
Total No. of Admissions 3057 3114 1219 803 1867
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 59.54 58.64 2417 19 48.78
Five year summery
No. of Clinic Attendance Total No. of Admissions
9000 2820 7912
8000 3500 4057 3114
7000 3000
6000 5124 2500
5000 2000 1867
4000 3472
3000 2636 1500 1219
2000 1000 503
1000 500 .
0 0
V. ENT Unit
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics Held 144 287 235 290 293
No. of Clinic Attendance 9648 11552 8084 8412 10709
Total No. of Admissions 1784 1736 1179 826 985
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 61.29 63.57 42.83 34.70 17.55
No. of Surgeries done 816 804 584 576 641
Five year summery
No. of Clinic Attendance Surgeries done
14000 %00 816 804
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8084
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VI. Orthopaedic Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics Held 193 196 155 187 191
No. of Clinic Attendance 11644 12436 9179 9946 9897
Total No. of Admissions 2642 2611 2122 1678 1704
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 375 36.64 46.31 34.2 31.71
No. of Surgeries done 1992 1916 1548 1490 1433

Five year summery
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VII. Ophthalmology (Eye) Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics held 235 242 197 227 231
No. of Clinic Attendance 14683 14813 9974 8427 10651
No. of Admissions 1862 1570 1145 894 1108
Bed Occupation Rate (%) 50.97 55.13 42.62 40.61 48.11
No. of Surgeries performed 3167 3159 2140 1868 2796

Five year summery
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VIII. Cardiology Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics held 98 98 84 89 96
No. of Clinic Attendance 5657 7889 5215 5409 5925
No. of Admissions 3310 3121 2560 2531 2464
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 93.44 87.47 72.94 77.26 46.25
No. of Coronary Angiograms 1375 1565 1277 1330 1200
Five year summery
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|X. Cardio-Thoracic Unit
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics held 96 100 84 91 96
No. of Clinic Attendance 4512 4771 3808 3804 4239
No. of Admissions 1069 1242 1066 1053 1148
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 68.15 65.82 72.94 4591 70.47
No. of Surgeries performed 630 728 584 616 664

Five year summery
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics held 200 199 178 202 228
No. of Clinic Attendance 9720 10286 6374 6126 8380
Five year summery
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XI. Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Admissions 1084 1040 1125 873 798
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 87.26 80.40 79.06 65.62 59.01
Five year summery
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XIl. Rheumatology and Rehabilitation Unit
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics held 190 190 164 196 166
No. of Clinic Attendance 5449 4672 3177 3412 3706
Five year summery
No. of Clinic Attendance 200 No. of Clinics held
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0 140
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XIll. Neurology Unit
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics held 97 93 78 73 96
No. of Clinic Attendance 5682 6268 4083 4473 5538
No. of Admissions 559 591 439 517 524
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 42.17 46.92 35.29 56.28 48.84
No. of EEG performed 523 975 839 814 885
No. of EMG performed 1242 1467 891 1012 1043
Five year summery
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XIV.

Neurosurgical Unit
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics held 96 92 82 94 96
No. of Clinic Attendance 945 1032 915 742 848
No. of Admissions 1065 1122 983 750 847
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 45.02 47.41 46.12 43.02 80.04
No. of surgeries performed 146 164 219 278 284
Five year summery
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XV. Nephrology Unit
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics held 242 242 205 191 182
No. of Clinic Attendance 14107 15027 10147 11546 10587
No. of Admissions 6356 6625 7108 6477 6641
Bed Occupancy Rate (%) 79.90 89.73 94.08 78.8 52.44
No. of Kidney transplantations 28 37 31 50 33
No. of Dialyses 6467 6922 6412 5637 5278
Five year summery
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XVI. Anaesthesiology Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. Anesthesia given 14601 14619 11804 10493 12436
Five year summery
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XVII. Intensive Care Unit (ICU,CCU&CICU)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Admissions 1297 1466 1302 1280 1343
Bed occupancy rate (%) 95.10 94.68 80.08 85.72 100.7
Five year summery
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Clinics Held 50 52 42 44 47
No. of Clinic Attendance 2330 2330 1614 1547 2027
No. of routine investigations 403536 460567 347131 370545 334186
No. of special investigations 27440 25563 19779 21644 22247
Five year summery
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XIX. Histopathology Unit
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of specimens received 6016 6160 5764 5274 5125
No. of investigations done 25169 23458 20239 19233 18206
Five year summery
2000 No. of specimens received 30000 No. of investigations done
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15000
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0 0
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XX. Microbiology Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Cultures performed 37206 48378 33316 26471 28619
No. of ABST performed 8196 8773 7441 5368 6926
No. of Serological Tests performed 45187 37340 38676 58026 74416
No. of AFB Tests performed 1632 2518 1463 892 1251

Five year summery
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XXI. Biochemistry Unit
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of routine tests performed 604545 711223 488709 387272 489804
No. of special tests performed | 70587 70519 59936 60870 48926
Five year summery
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XXIl. Radiology & Imaging Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of X-rays Examinations 51601 50724 39698 34643 42767
NEROAE RSB0 13447 12899 8974 7054 10945
formed
No. of CT Scans performed 13428 13031 10551 9740 10966
FNAC US Biopsy 683 795 476 411 571
Five year summery
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XXIII. Blood Bank
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Total No. of Blood packs Collected 5395 5552 5147 5489 4526
No. of Red Cell Units Issued 5104 5201 4991 4743 4584
No. of ABO and Rh groupings 38031 36709 30964 29019 32660
Grouping & cross matching 20148 10135 10492 11361 7364

Five year summery
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XXIV. Medical Check-up unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Medical Check-ups (FEB) 2895 2919 1771 1460 5053
Medical Check-ups (Executive) 854 847 373 280 462
Five year summery
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XXV. Paying Wards
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Admissions 7213 7008 5612 5048 5890
Bed Occupancy rate (%) 77.03 73.69 50.83 60.93 61.73
Five year summery
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XXVI. Endoscopy Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of Bronchoscopy 88 74 33 44 78
No. of Upper Gl Endoscopy 1876 1717 1367 1214 1531
No. of Colonoscopy 735 583 479 515 580
No. of Fibre Optic Laryngoscopy 971 1122 758 465 651
No. of Oesophageal Variceal Banding 222 213 146 130 165

Five year summery

160 No. of Bronchoscopy 300 No of Colonoscopy
88
90 700
80 74 ’8 600 580
70 500
60
50 44 400
40 33 300
30 200
20
10 100
0 0
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
XXVII. ECG unit
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of ECGs 47747 47270 39227 34973 40059
No. of Exercise ECGs 1814 1878 1231 960 1063
No. of Halter monitoring tests 1200 1089 993 881 981
Five year summery
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XXVIIIl. Out Patient Department (OPD) and
Emergency Treatment Unit (ETU)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of OPD visits 22992 23010 16307 13337 19537
No. of ETU visits 43478 46973 33357 25702 28576
Five year summery
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XXIX. Health Education and Infection Control Unit

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Staff training programs 98 93 135 26 56
OPD/Clinic area Lectures 272 224 15 02 19
Hospital acquired Infection rate 0.75 0.59 0.5 0.62 1.11
Five year summery
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of referrals from Wards 1601 1310 1151 762 796
No. of referrals from OPD & Clinics 2393 2020 1247 982 784

Five year summery
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XXXI. Psychological Counseling Unit
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
No. of patients 2095 2035 1687 1465 1762
No. of patients referred for Psychiatric or Medical treat- 306 298 247 217 251
ments
No. of patients referred for legal advice 57 42 31 24 21
No. of awareness programs conducted 11 9 03 5 5

Five year summery
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XXXII. Channelling Service

2018 2019 2020

2021

2022

No. of Channeled patients
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Five year summery
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Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital
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Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital

4.1 Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Financial position as at 31st December

SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL

51‘;11??-\'] ENT OEFINANCIAL POSITION

ASAT 31" DECEMBER 2022 2021
Naote Rs R=s
ASSETS
Lurrent Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 01 411,288,414 102,000,676
Receivables and Pre-Payments 02 441,298,846 277,158,321
Inventories 03 613,849,413 406,017,916
Short Term Investments 04 20,000 20,000
1,466 456,673 785,196,913
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 05 13,342,641,948 1.938511,898
Furniture & Fittings, Auto Mobiles, Others 11 46,852,846 41,992,994
Capital Work in Progress 06 217,772,925 470,878,128
Data Base of Scanned BHTs 16,372 542 16,372 542
13,623,640,260 2467755562
Total Assets 15,090,096,933 3,252,952,475
LIABILITIES
Non Current Liabilities
Employees’ Benefits 07 709,258,158 725 855,797
709,258,158 725,855,797
¢ Liabili
Trade & Other Payables og 1,221,559.737 792377273
Total Liabilities 1,221,559,737 792,377,273
NET ASSETS 13,159,279,039 1,734,719,405
NET ASSETS/ EQUITY
Contributed Capital and Reserves
Grants Received from Japanese Govt, 978,976,227 978,976,227
Capital Reserve - [Other Grants Recelved) 37,848,935 37,848,935
Revaluation Reserve 11,649,087,371
MOH Donatlon - BMW Car - 1,360,000
Other Donations 9,945,643 9,945,643
MOH Donation - MRI Scanner - 75,697,104
Deferred Income ( Capital Grant ] 1,165,412,155 1,559,628,126
Accumulated Surplus / [Deficit ) 17 (681,991,291) (928,736,630)

TOTAL NET ASSETS / EQUITY

The Accounting Policies on pages 07 to 11 and notes on

13.159,279,039

1,734,719,405

Pages 12 to 18 form an integral part of these Financial Statements,

The Hoard of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements, Financial

Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf,
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Dushmantha Thotawatte
(BCom(Sp),MAFin.Econ,FCA)
Accountant
Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital
Thalapat iva, Nugegoda
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4.2 Financial Performance Statement

SRI1 JAYEWARDENEPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°"DECEMBER 2022 2021
Note Bs. Rs.

Revenue 09 5,476,170,001 4,838,487,529
Interest Income 10 18,525,439 7449187
Capital Grants Amortization 13 516,173,075 434,148,750

6,010,868,515 5,280,085,466
Materials & Consumables Used 11 1,681,749.461 1,589,293,616
Staff Costs 12 3,027,085,885 3,023,950,947
Depreciation 13 516,173,075 434,148,750
Other Operating Expenses 14 509,218,396 448434 574

5,734,226,817 5,495,827,887
Profit/(Loss) from Operations 276,641,698 [215,742,421)
Finance Costs 15 25,589,923 30,619,070
Other Expenses 16 3,817,397 7,829,313
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 247,234,377 (254,190,804)
Economic Service Charges -
Profit/(Loss) After Taxation 247,234,377 (254,190,804)
Profit & Loss Account Brought Forward 17 (929,225,669) (674,545,826)

Profit & Loss Account Carried Forward

(681,991,291)

(928,736,630)




Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital

SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

WITHOUT CONSIDERING GOVERNMENT RECURRENT GRANT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°""DECEMBER 2022 2021
Note Rs. Rs.

Revenue 09 3,196,170,001 2,868,887,529
Interest Income 10 18,525,439 7,449,187
Capital Grants Amortization 13 516,173,075 434 148,750

3,730,868,515 3,310,485,466
Materials & Consumables Used 11 1,681,749 461 1,589,293,616
Staff Costs 12 3,027,085 885 3,023,950,947
Depreciation 13 516,173,075 434,148,750
Other Operating Expenses 14 509,218,396 448434574

5,734,226,817 5,495,827, 887
Profit/(Loss) from Operations (2,003,358,302) (2,185,342,421)
Finance Costs 15 25,589,923 30,619,070
Other Expenses 16 3,817,397 7829313
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation (2,032,765,623) (2,223,790,804)
Economic Service Charges = =
Profit/(Loss) After Taxation (2,032,765,623) (2,223,790,804)
Profit & Loss Account Brought Forward 17 (929,225,669) (674,545,826)

Profit & Loss Account Carried Forward
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4.3 Cash Flow Statement

SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Annual Report - 2022

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°'DECEMBER 2022 2021

R. Rs.
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 247234377 (254,190,804)
Adjustments in respect of Previous Year (489,039) 16,821,532
Amortization of Capital Grant (516,173,075) (434,148,750)
Depreciation 516,173,075 434,148,750
Provision for Gratuity 62,931,893 67,473,756
Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes 309,677,232 (169,895,516)
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (207,831,497) (11,209,773)
(Increase) / Decrease in Receivables and Pre-Payments (164,140,525) 350,693,098
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables 429,182 464 (204,849,307)
(Increase) / Decrease in HNB Call Deposit 36,780,000
Cash Generated From Operating Activities 366,887,674 1,518,502
Gratuity Paid (79,529,533) (67,243,085)
Net Cash flows Generating From Operating Activities 287,358,141 (65,724,583)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Capital Grant Received 44,900,000 311,400,000
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (11,633,803) (744,848,051)
Capitalized during the Year (264,441,805)
Capital Work In Progress 253,105,204 406,017,400
Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 21,929,595 (27,430,651)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 309,287,737 (93,155,234)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 102,000,677 195,155,911
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 411,288,414 102,000,677




Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital
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4.5 Detailed analysis of net assets

SRI JAYEWARDENAPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL
DETAILED ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317" DECEMBER 2022 Z021

350 R=
CAPITAL GRANTS
Grants from |apanese Government o Sn Lankan Government 928.851,297 928 A51,297
for thie Project
Grants received under [apanese [International Co-Operation 50 124,930 50,124,930
Deferred Income [Capital Grants from SL Government | Mote - A 1.165.412,155 1. 55%.628,126

Capital Reserves =

Donation to Purchase a Hemo Dialysis Machine Toq 233 799 233
Cars & Equipment donated by Eajima Corparation of |apan 260,000 260,000
Grants from Olympus Corporation of [apan 79,700 79,700
Central Bank Grants for Cardio-Thoracic Unit 30, (000, 000 30,000,000
Grants from President Fund 6, 710,000 6,710,000
Other nations - Funds and Equipments Dods5 643 G945 643

2,191.182958 2,586.398,929

Note - A

Deferred Income [Capital Grants from 5L Government )

Balance ax at 1™ January 1.55%.628,126 1605319772
Add : Capital Grants Received During the Year 41,900,000 311,400,000
Less : Capital Grant Amortization 439,115,971 357.09]. 646
Balance as at 31 December 1,165412,155 1,55%.628,126

Deferred Income [Capital Grants from MOH )

Balance as at 01st January T5.697,104 151,394,208
Less : Capital Grant Amortization 75697, 104 75697 104
Balance as at 31™ Decembser - 75,697,104

Deferred Income (EMW Car from MOF )

Balance as at 01st January 1.360,000 2,720,000
Less : Capatal Grant Amortization 1,360,000 1. 3&0,000
Balance as at 31" Decembser - 1,360,000
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4.6 General Information & Significant

Accounting Policies - 2022

S5RI JAYEWARDENEFURA GENERAL HOSFITAL
GENERAL INFORMATION & SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" DECEMBER 2022
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1

Reporting Entity

The Reporting Entity, the Sri Jayewardenepura GeneralHospital which is domiciled in Sri
Lanka and located in Thalapathpitiva, Nugegodawhich is a gift by the Govermment of Japan
for the Citizen of 5ri Lanka was declared opened on 17 September 1984,

5ri Jayewardenepura General Hospital was established by the Act of Parliament No.54 of
19E3.

The primary intention of the establishment of the Hospital was to provide excellent Medical

and Surgical Services compared to other government hospitals, at a reasonable price to the
General Public of 5ri Lanlka.

5ri Jayewardenepura General Hospital was setup to supplement the curative health service
in 5ri Lanka and to assist in the training of Medical Undergraduates and Post Graduates and
other health care personnel. While the Board of Directors takes strategic and policy dedsions
the operational control is vested with the Committee of Managemeni

Z. BASIS OF PREPARATION

o |

22

Basis of Acoounting

Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with the Public Sector Accounting
Standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and in keeping
with the Historical Cost convention where appropriate accounting policies are disclosed in
succeeding notes. The Financial Statements are prepared on accrual basis and in 5ri Lankan
Rupees,

These Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis that the Entity would continue
as a gaing comcemrn for the foreseeable fubure.

Comparative Figures

Comparative figures, in certain scenarics, have been adjusted to confirm the changes in
presentation of figures in the current Financial Year.

3. PROPERTY, FLANT & EQUIPMENT

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of
Froperty, Plant and Equipment is the cost of purchase or construction together with any
incidental expenses inourred in bringing the assets to its working condition required for its
intended wuse. Expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, extending or improving
assets of a permanent nature by means of which to carry on the services provided or to
increase the capacity of the services provided has been treated as capital expenditure.

Depreciation is provided on the cost of assets other than on freehold landusing Straight Line
method at the rates as stated below:
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SRI JAYEWARDENEFURA GENERAL HOSPITAL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTD. )

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER Z022

3. PROFPERTY, PLANT & EQUIFMENT [ Comtd )

Donations by lapanese Government

Buildings 2%
Electrical work 100
Sewerage & Plumbing 10
Air Conditioning 150
Lifts /Elevators 100
Furniture & Fittings 1306
Medical Equipment 200
Dther Assets

Other Buildings 5%
Furniture EFittings and Other Equipment 200
Electrical Equipment, Sewing Machines& Cylinders 1004
Medical Equipment 2506
RefrigeratorsE Photocopy Machines 150
Automobiles 20
Softwrare [Locally Developed] 100%;

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the
date that the asset is classified as held for sale or on the date that the asset is disposed.

4. INVENTORIES

All the items indicated in the inventories have been walued at the Cost. The cost of
inventories is valued on First in First out [FIFO) basis. Due to the difficulty in determining
the Met Realizable Value (MEY], it has been ignored.

S5 ACCOUNTING FOR GRANTS

51

Govermment Grants

In the absence of a 51 Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard for the presentation of
Government Capital Grants received by the Statutory Board, the para 26 of LEAS 20 is
adopted by the Board.

Accordingly Capital Grant is credited to a defermed income account and amortizedat the rates
which are equal to the rates of depreciation. Amortization rate is approximately equal to the
depreciation rate calculated for the investment made in assets.

Recurrent Grants from Government of Treasury have been recognized as income of the
period and therefore added a= an income in the Income Statement for the year.
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S5RI JAYEWARDENEFURA GENERAL HOSFITAL
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTDL)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" DECEMBER 2022

6. LIABILIITES & PROVISIONS

[ | Retirement Benefits

In terms of Gratuity Act No 12 of 1983, the lability for payment to an employee arises only
upon completion of & years of continuwed services. To meet the liability, a provision is made,
which is equivalent to a half of a month salary based om the last month of the Financial
Yearmultiplied byno. of years in service, for all employess who have completed five years of

SErVIiCE.

6.2 Capital Commitments & Contingencies

(a)All material Expenditure Commitments and Contingent Liabilities as at the Balance Sheet

date have been disclosed as follows.

(b)Following Legal Cases are filed against the Hospital Board as at 31,/12 /2022

Serial Case No. Case Financial
No. Commitment
01 444 /2000 Dir. Anula Wijesundara Hs.25 Mn with cost
02 51/68,/05M Professor H.L Satharasinghe Rs.60 Mn with cost
03 MH/33/11B5/2014 Mr. Upali Bandara Bs.15 Mn
04 01 /Add/72,/2013 Mr. EM.E_B Ekanayake Bs.18 Mn
05 0274272013 Mr. Lasantha Rs.18 Mn
L] M2819,2017 Death of Udara Hasaral s 5 Mn
o7 M/2307 715 Mr. EMEB Ekanayake Mot estimated
0B CA [writ) 1 16,2020 D[ Mrs) M.5 Buddhadasa Mot estimated
0o CA [writ) 186,/2020 D[ Mrs) PSR Amarathunga Mot estimated
10 CA [(writ) 79,/ 2020 Dir. P.U Kottage Mot estimated
11 CA [writ) 35,2020 Mrs. 5K Silva Mot estimated
12 LT /0211252020 Mrs P Thanuja Antoney Mot estimated
13 CA [writ)311,2020 D[ Mrs) [LH Samarakoon Mot estimated

(c] The Department of Inland Revenue has made two Assessments for an additional PAYE tax
liability for the Years of Assessment - 2013 /14 & 2014 /150f Rs. 4,440,091 and Rs.5,2903 440
respectively in relation to Professional Charges and Free Medical Fadlities to the staff of
S]GH. The case has been referred to the Tax Appeal Commission
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SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA GENERAL HOSFPITAL
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTIL.)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
7. INCOME & EXPENDITURE

7.1 Recognition of Revenue & Expenditure

The Revenue of the Hospitalincludes the Income from Hospital Charges, Government Grant
(recurrent), Interest Income from Call Deposits and loans to employees and other
miscellaneous income. All categories of income and expenditure have been recognized on an
accrual basis.

T2 Cash Flow Statement

Thie Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the indirect method. For the purpose of
Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of current acoount balances held at
Banks and petty cash and Main cash imprests maintained.

8. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are converted to 5ri Lankan Rupees at the exchange rate
prevailing at the ime of occurring the ransaction

9. TAXATION

Thie provision for Income Tax is based on the elements of Income E Expenditure as reported
in the Finandal Statements and computed in accordance with the provision of thelnland
Revenue Act Mo 24 of 2017. However, in view of Tax losses, no provision has been provided
in the accounts.
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SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIL)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315 DECEMBER 2022

10. DIALYSIS ASSISTANCE FUND

Hospital manages a Dialysis Assistance Fund with a Fiwed Deposit of Bs. 12.5 Mn. Monthly
interest of above Fized Deposit utilizes to setthe approved hospital bills of Dialysis patients.

11. WORK IN PROGRESS

Capital expenses incurred duning the year, which are not capitalized as at the reporting date
are shown as capital work in progress whilst the capital assets which have been completed
during the year and put to use have been transferred to PPE

12. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will Aow to
the 51GH and the revenue can be reliably measured, regandless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at their fair value of consideration received or receivable

Further, we obtained the Board approval o implement the price formula o calculate
hospital charges by considering the overhead expenses & other direct expenses

Price Formula

P = [(E,+E:+E; + E; + Es J5]-1

El = Consumables hilled

E2 = Personnel emoluments

E3 E Ovwerheads [Consumption, Uility peyments (interest cost-interest income) other
operating expenses, |

E4 = Fuael [Diesel, Furnace oil, Petrol, K oil, )

ES E [[Total Revenuwe-Recarrent grant) - [Total Expenditure - Reourremt
grant]]=Profit/Loss

13. BAD DEBET PROVISIONS

HBad Debt Provision of 5% is provaded on balances of Debtors as at 31" December
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4.7 Notes to the Financial Statements- 2022

ASAT 31 DECEMBER 2022 2021
R=, Rs.
Note: 01
Cash & Cash Equivalents
BOC Current A/C No. 227982 [Recurrent] 218,263,142 73,705,022
BOC Current A/C No. 7732050 [Capital] 3,046,235 1,440,265
BOC Current A/C No. [Recurrent) 50,000
BOC Current A/C Mo. [Recurrent) 157,789,453
BOC Current A/C No. 2ZBBETET [Dialysis Fund) 1,758,776 285,828
HNB Current A/C No.036010002853 10,887 440 11,744,267
Dialysis Fund - Fixed Deposit-{BOC) 12,500,000 12,500,000
Cash in Hand & Imprest Accounts 6,463,336 1,463,000
Petty Cash Imprest for Stamps 530,031 251,595
411,288.414 102,000,676
Note: 02
Receivables and Pre-Payments
Miscellaneous Deposits Schedule 01 8,751,242 6,162,898
Other Income Receivable Schedule 02 3,381,160 2,272,422
Staff Distress Loans 150,992 550 152,141,768
University College - Receivable B.936,043
Salary Advance 174,500 58,250
Staff - Festival Advances 183438 100,938
Sundry Debtors Schedule 03 422728 258,077
Hospital Charges Receivahle Mote 02.1 252 903 400 04 793 448
Death Donation Recoverable 400,507 200,359
Bond Violation Receivable 11,645,026 6,934,702
Ministry of Health 12,444,204 5,290,415
441,298,846 277,158,320
Note 021
Hospital Charges Receivahle 257903 490 00 703 448
Provision For Bad Debts (5,000,000 (5,000,000
252,903 490 04,703 448
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SRI JAYEWARDENEFURA GENERAL HOSPITAL

NOTES TD THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTD.

ASAT 31" DECEMBER 2022 2021
R=. H=.
Note:03
Inventories - Location wise
General Stores 53540379 40,171,612
rugs Stores Tr423241 43,690,387
Surgical Consumables Stores 162597500 83,709,552
Dressing Stores B.141.178 9,947 968
Electro Medical Equipment (EME]) Main Stores 6, 27638 6,486,662
Lab & Xray Main Stores 4B 490387 30,443,544
General [tems in Sub $tores [all wards & other bocations]) 331028731 18,987,040
Drugs. Surgical, Dressing & Other Consumables in Sub Stores 234 486056 182 475,606
Maote 3.1 623,744,109 415912612
Less: Provision for Expiry [tems [ B34 597 {9,894 607
G613 B49.4132 406,017,915
Note 3.1
Inventories - [tem wise
Drugs 67,294,712
Dressing Items 16,702,942
Surgical [tems 158,558,040
Lab [tems 29,496,365
X-Ray Items 8,138,081
Electro Medical Equipment 76,528,571
Medical Oxygen 22,214
il 1,394,575
Printing & Stationary [tems 18,564,300
ther [General) ltems 39212 B613
- 415912613
Note: 04
Short Term Investments
National Savings Bank [5t@aff Security Deposits) 200,000 20, ek
20,000 20,

Note: 05
Froperty, Plant & Equipments
Property, Mant & Equipment [Pls. refer page 15)

Furniture & Fittings, Automohiles and Others [Pls. refer page 15)

Note: 06

Capital Work in Progress Schedule D4

Note: 07

Employees” Benefits - Gratuity
Balance at the beginning of the year
Provision made during the Year

[-] Payment made during the year

Balance at the end of the year
13

13,342 641,948

1.938,511,698

46,852,846 41,992,995
217772925 470,878,128
217772925 470,878,128
725,855,797 725,625,101

£2,931.893 67,473,781
{79.529,533) [67.243,085)
709,258,158 725855797




SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL
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ASAT 317 DECEMBER 202 2021
Rs. Rs.
Note: 08
Trade & Other Payables
Creditors and Accrued Expenses Mote 8.1 1, 104,863,724 680,808,142
Other Liahilities Mote 8.2 116,606,013 111,569,131
1,221,559,737 792,377,273
Note 8.1
Creditors and Accrued Expenses
Accrued Expenses Schedule 05 332,071,344 284 691,795
Audit Fees [Auditor Gen. Dept.) 6,404,400 5,968 400
Trade Creditors 766,387,079 389,710,149
Mational Water Supply & Drainage Board - 437 700
1,104,863,724 680,808,143
Note 8.2
Other Liabilities
Performance/ Advance Bonds Depaosits Schedule 06 1,286,530 1,382 937
Sundry Creditors Schedule 07 2,532,645 8,694 660
Professional Charges Schedule 0B 64,188,452 54,651,560
Hospital Charges - Deposits 10,326,929 9524 680
Gratuity Fayable 1,380,256 1,521,531
Dialysis Assistance Fund A/C - [ Control Account ) 1,760,146 887,108
Library Memhberships - 1,000
Retention Payahle 21,077,591 21,420,205
Tender Deposits 1,643,465 085,350
Dialysis Assistance Fund A/C - [ Fixed Deposit ] 12,500,000 12 500,000
116,696,013 111,569,130
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AL IAYEVAHIIENEFLH A i
OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTID.

N
FOR THE YEAR ENDED X1 " DECEMBER 0zZ el |

L Hs.
Nodbe: g
Revemue
Revenue from Haospital Care Note 0.1 3,131,723,155 2814,751,654
rovermment Grants - Becurrent 2. 280,000,000 L9&0,600,000
iOther Income Note 9.2 . 54135677

T Ga11,723,18%  4,B38,487,531

Notde 0.1

Revenue from Hospltal Care

Accommodation Charges 122,648,040 210186704
Surgery Charges 2459300,012 1653204356
Radiology Charges 122,761,753 BE4TISI6
Laboratory Charges 718,751,905 SIES512 568
Physiotherapy Charges 16,556,945 10,102 090
[insgs Charges 1,150,278 469 1.00B 756,124
Emdoscopy Charges 18,757,003 10500831
Thorasic Surgery Charges 104,419,810 85,769,500
Eye Testxs 23,196,774 11425254
Registration and Admission Charges 157,084,568 126249 469
EMT Charges 2164625 1.743.700
Dialysis Charges 41,166,692 15473724
Doppler Charges 6775963 4,497 500
MSHE Charges 219,780 409 146110001
Clinic Charges J4, 743472 24306342
ECG f EBEG §f EMG Charges 2196250 1.310350
Echo Tests Charges 8,549,315 5492750
ET I Charges 109,647,357 106046830
Nutribomal Consulkation Fees 183,310 192 200
Medical Check Up Charges 52,144,250 11574993
Dermabology Charges 3,304045 L0327 500
Emdcrinology Investigation Charges 1,683,214 2012700
less

Cost of Free Medical Treatments - Staff /Dependents 172451011 118030,144
Hospital Charges Exempted - [ Clergy fOthers) 0, 450,034 35,310,454

3,131,723,155 2,814, 751,054

Note 0.2

Dther Income

Ambulance Charges 1,601,280 4,795,623
Revenue from Staff Meals 1,200,245 674,125
Revenue from 5Staff Rent and Electricity 5700401 4,185,059
Mizcellaneous Income 13433948 8,758 598
Baonds settled by Staff Members 16476958 9,188,565
Sales Commission 336,901 4,212
Channeling Fees 219,900 731,770
Rent Iecome - Inonerator .

Rent Iecome - Milk Bar 144,000 1338, 000
Rent Imcome - Commercial Bark 50,000 240,000
Rent Ipcome - Dsusals 1440000 1440, 000
Rent Imcome - PayGo 108000 72,000
Rent Imcome - Hospital Shop 5,3TE000 4. 771,000
Rent Iecome - Hatbon Matiosal Bank 540,000 540,000
Rent Imcome - Bank of Ceylon TH0000 240,000
Rent Imcome - People's Bank 180,000 180,000
Rent Imcome - Fruik Juice Bar 70,000

Rent Icome - Post Dfice 12,000 12,000

48,581,633 35,900,052
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Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital

ERl JAYEWARDENAPURA GENERAL HOSFITAL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTLD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" DECEMEBER Z0ZZ 2021
F= Rs.

Other Incomye (Condd )
0.15% Service Charges on Professional Charges e e e | 583,035
Revenuwe from Car Park 14951901 16,194 591
Income From Supplier Registratson 14 [, 0000 1,367 000

G4 446,846 54.135.B7TH
Note: 1o

Interest Imoome

Imterest Income represents the interest received fromf acorued on the OF days call deposits placed out of
temporary exessive funds collected from patients as professional charges and the interest on Distress Loans
miven to the Staff Members of the Hospital Detanls are as follows.

68

Distress Loan 6,17E554 65231491
Call Deposit & Fived Deposit 12,291 100 BAD TG
Schoal Hook 55,765 55,930
18,525,430 T A0 18T
Note:11
Materials & Consnmables eed
Purchases
Drugs 331062,154 374,681,524
Surgical Items= 583,574 597 490,440, 1032
Dressings 107,742 645 BZ,755.297
Medical Oxygen 29,614,970 30,192 774
Lab Chemicals & Consumahles 284 230 20 297 915,685
X-Ray Film= & Chemicals 50,274 449 36,002,729
izeneTal Supplies 135,67E 406 104,308,658
Electro Medical Engineering [ EME - Consumashles] B AT 350 155
l.68Z,1Z7. 915 1.463,646432
fedid: Stocles brought forward [Opening] 415912612 403 219 252
Less Stocks carried forward [Closing]) 622,744,109 415912612
1474, 296,417 1,450953.072
Add: Expiry Stocks o 2,894,697
Add: Cost of meals [for petients and stafff] 134985 123 76,79 O05
5P C- Free Medical Drugs TZ 467,921 51,653,243
LGEL 740 461 15890 203 617

Naote: 12
Stalff Costs

Eslaries & Allowances

EPF
ETF

hvertime, Piece Rate & Extra Duty Payments
Ursifiormn Allowance

Leave Encashments

Pension Contribation

Trawelling Expenses

Add: Other Staff Related Expenses

Stalf Welfare

Human Resources Development Expenses
Prowision for Gratuity

Note: 13
Depreciation

Depreciation for the year

Note: 14

Dther Operating Expenses

[a]) Fa=l
BEailers
Mator Vehpcles

1, 7T48,722.5432
177.1453432
24,286,244
015,814 666
14,519 725
50,000,000
9,392,704
LO9E546

1,690,781 492
179,662,591
44,920,655
Q52506038
14593 491
493159 344
TAalT 195

QOB G4

2 060,070 BGT

o400 2L 450

[Ref Note - O5)

262,350 15897616
151,500 256,126
65,691,673 67,473,736
3,027,085 BB5 3,023,050,048
316,173.075 434,148,750

S18, 173 075

434 148 750

50,053, 7E1 34,683 220
4 987 607 2AF6 BT
o4,04 1,387 37,510,002
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SR JAYEWARDENAFPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31"DECEMEER L 3] iy |
R=. Ks.
Other Operating Expenses (Contd.. )
{b) Utility Services
Electricity Charges 1540, 194, 045 138,663,584
Water Charges 53 643 934 41 908,323
Telephone Charges [(Communication ) 31128 RE] 2 910,623
Jilsty % it Hitell IRV ARE 530
i{cl Repairs & Maintenance
Service Agreements signed with Suppliers T4 968 572 61 282 341
Repairs to Motor Yehicles 5511,30% JAGT,ITH
Repairs to Medical Eguipment,Other Equipments [on breakdowns) 26 26 BES 24091 881
Repairs to Steel Furniture E 1O0 1277, Baslp
Repairs to Buildings | 608,675 1347 667
LI 161,558 101 466,927
(d) Other Services
|amitorial and Cheaning Services 15 B06 652 34705, ik
Hospital Landscaping 12 997 591 13,754, 1 50
Garbage Disposal Service 4 489 (M 4. 491, ik
Rempval of Undaimed Dead Bodies SRE 000 AR L
Mamtenance of 3ewerage Line 14,693 Ta3 11,830,321
Laundry Services 17 3040, (W) 174546, ()
Security Services 13 ORS BEY 21 355 TTH
License and Insurance TRO,537 604 &1
Legal Charges 458 &0 1500, E]0
Andit Fees 2_5:0W0, (W1 2501, (WM
Disciplimary Procedure Expenses 504 425 12, Gl
Postage & Stamps 919,900 1041, 105
Refreshments 402 4T3 TET, 375
Allowances for Committees & Boards .68, 140 2 162 F50
Advertisements & Marketing 2.970,%47 3 2ET E6D
Sports Club 13,600
Mizcellaneous Expenses B 265 B9R D EX 115
Rates & Taxes 2 D0E, 66 143 242
139 B4R 591 135975015
500 118 3% 4HR 434,574
Note: 15
Finance Costs
Provision for Bad & 0)ful Debts 9193 5312
Bank Charges KL L] 2, (614
Credit Card Commissions 25 553,513 21263 535
15 589 028 36 19.071
Note: 16
Other Expenditure
Outside Lab Test Charges IEIT 397 TEM 313
AEIT 397 TR 313
Note: 17
Accumulated Fund
Profit & [Loss) ASC 1st [amuary (928 _T36 630) (691 221,588}
Adjusted in respect of Previous Years {4 B9 039) 16675, TH2
Profit & Loss Account Brought Forward [Adjusted] (925 225 669) (674545 E26)
Profit f{ Loss] as per Inmome Statement 247 234 377 [ 254 160, =04y
Profit & Loss A/C at the end of the Year (6E].9T0.291) | WEH.THh, 60
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4. 8 Schedules to the Financial statements -2022

SR JAYEWARDENEFURA GENERAL HOSPITAL

SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AS AT 31 /1272022 |

Diake vinm Descripiion Amoant Rs
s4.05.04 4 Telecommumication - T'C Deposit 3,000
84.1030 116 Colombo Gas & Water Company 24,000
84.12.05 139 Colombo Gas & Water Company i, 00
850015 24 Telecommunication - Depaosit 430
a5.05.21 624 Telecommunication - Depasit 150
#5.05.18 e b Telerommunication - Depaosit 150
a6.0618 o0 Teleommumication - Deposit 150
A5.06.18 921 Telecommunication - Depasit 150
a5.07.08 11 Ceylon Bulbs & Electricals (=21
A5.08.05 1375 Telecommunication - Depaosit 150
a6.00.08 146 Telerommunication - Depasit 250
a6.00.008 147 Telerommunication - Depasit 250
B6.07.29 017 Telecommunication - Depaosit 150
a6.07.24 1960 Colombo Gas & Water company 19,500
a7.00L.08 5 Telerommunication - Depasit 150
ar.oe.0l 2851 Ceylon Dxygen Co. Lid 4,000
A7.0L0G imET Ceylon Dxygen Co. Lid 54,000
a9.05.16 169 Ceylon Dxygen Co. Lid 35,000
89.05.20 1954 Ceylon Oxygen Co. Lid 22,000
91014 4175 Colombo Gas & Water Co. Lid 25,000
89.12 2B 4E50 Ceylon Dxygen Co. Lid B,50:0
a89.12 36 Ceylon Electricity Board G00,000
031z 95 Ceylon Dxygen Co. Lid 15,000
00829 3507 Colombo Gas & Water Co. Lid 5,000
A0.082% 1372 Colombo Gas & Water Co. Ltd 25,000
91.04.29 1932 Telecommunication - Depaosit 25,000
220314 1x19 HNW5EDEoard 16,053

Post Master Gemeral - Depaosit Franking Machine 00,265

21231 LR Ceylon Electricity Boand L6700
a0.03.12 Iv18 Colombo Gas & Water Co. Lid LD
25.06.07 3965 Ceylon Dxygen Co. Lid 1,50
a5.09.14 663 Ceylon Dxygen Co. Lid 1,50
50029 463 [r | B Peiris - I0D Deposit 5,000
497 5 Jaya; Multy Purpose Co-op Saciety 75,0040

Q6.07.02 4934 Ceylon Dxygen Co Litd - Deposit 11,000
Ceylon Cxygen Co Ltd - Deposit 500,000

CE E - Advance Cardiac Cember 937,500

Agency Post Difice L 000

2007 5 layapura Multy Purpose Co-op Socety 75,000
2016 Refundable Deposit - For empity container 1. 200,000
Refundable Depaosit - For empty container 304,000

2018 Rent Deposit fior Male Nurses Rented House 240,000
2019 Depaosit for Fued - 5] Multi Purpoze Co op Soceity 45,000
Deposit for Container 100,000

2022 Court Case - Deposit - § Robertson 2,183,344
2072 Fuel Deposit - 5 | Multy Purpose Coop Soceity 405,000
B, 751,242
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SRl JAYEWARDENEFURA CENERAL HOSFITAL

SCHETHILES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS [AS AT 31/ 1Z/F02T | OONTD.
Schedule : 02
Other Income Receivable
Company Catesgary Year Manth Amount Hs,
Hatton Natiomal Hank Electmicity 2022 |Dec 12497 12 497
Bamk OFf Ceylom Electmicity 2022 |Dec l6.69G
Remt 2021 |Dec 20,000 I6,6M46
NLDH Electricity 20049 5553
2017 JLAST
2019  |Dct/Now/Dec 14362
2021 |lune talec 1525
202z  |DctfNow/Dec 24 ADG
Rent 2021 |lune talec 36000
2022 |MNov § Dec 24,000 151030
S5PC Remi 2021 | DcyNow{Dec 360,000
20195020 197 000
2022 |lan f Dec 1440000
Electmicity 2021 |Sep o Dec 62,141
2022  |Nowv § Dec 165 492 2238633
Frumt Juice Har Electmicity 2017 Dec 2415
2022 |Dec 3532
Remt 2022 |Dec (CRNE]I K] 74947
Food Shop Hent 2022 |Dec 1 20 0ND
Electricity 2022 |How J Dec 14 560 134 5640
rrocery Shop Hent 2022 |Dec LE1 SN
Electmicity 2022 |How J Dec 28172 2009 672
Pastry Shop
Electmicity 2022 |Dck f Dec 144 332
2017 |Dec 31.70F 148034
Commercial Bank Electmicity 2022 |How J Dec 6,746
2020  |Dct bo Dec 5907 T2 Tal
People’'s Eank Electmicity 2020 |Dctbo Dec 12517
2022  |MNowv § Dec 22516
Remt 2022  |Nowv § Dec 30,000 65,033
PayGo Remt 2022 |Dec 42,000 42,004
Post (ffice Hent 2022 |How J Dec 2 000 2,004
Mobite] Compamy Electmicity 2020 |l=ne to Dec 56,500
2022  |Dct bo Diec B7 556 124,555
Cheques Cancelled ajc - Imcome Recerrable 1 &8 468
F 380, 1461
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SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL

SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AS AT 31/12/2022) CONTD.

Schedule: 03

Sundry Debtors
Description Rs,
MOH - Property Loan Interest 87,416
MOH - Telephone Allowanses 60,000
MOH - Property Loan Interest - 2022 275,311
422,727
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SRI JAYEWARDENEFPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL

SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AS AT 31/12/2022 ) CONTD.

Schedule : 04

Capital Work In Progress

Projects Balance As At Cap lt:l:l:;'::r"""g P;z:::afnf Balance As At

01/01/2021 31/12/2022

Construction of Administrative Building 184,456,808.66 191,456,808.66 7,000,000.00 -
Hot Heat System - Paying Wards 9,970,852.62 9,970,852.62

Construction of Male Nurses Quarters 72,079,914.36 72,079,914.36 -
Construction of Public Toilets 80,048,896.30 80,048,896.30
Hot Water System 23,378,041.59 23,378,041.59
Construction of Work Shop Building 73,445,641.89 3,431,520.01 76,877,162
Original Bid Doc- CECB 118,039.84 118,039.84
Vacuum System Air Piping - OT/CU/ LR 9,017,571.50 9,017,571.50
Plan Approval - C Arm Room 8,907.06 8,907.06
Mob Advance - Toilets near ICU & Ground 8,326,769.70 8,326,769.70
Bid Security - Sri Lanka Navy 362,280.44 362,280.44
Mob Advance - Work Shop Building 7,106,554.33 7.106,554.33
Mob Advance - Toilets- 1to 17 2,557,849.43 2,557,849.43
470,878,127.72 217,772,924.71
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SRI JAYEWARDENAPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL

SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AS AT 31/12/2022 ) CONTD.
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Schedule : 05
Accrued Expenses

Description Rs

Raw Provision 40,124 ,192.00
Security Service 4400 000.00
Laundry Service 1,450,000.00
Janitorial & Landscaping service 6,839,364.42
Sewerage Maintaining Service 4,969 ,388.28
Garbage Disposal Service 760,000.00
Unclaimed Dead Bodies Disposal service 48,500.00
Electricity Expenditure 13,697 B07.69
State Pharmaceuitical Corporation - Staff Bills 63,605,303.35
PAYE Tax 10,176.00
Stamp Duty Payable 328,175.00
Service agreements - January Paid 901,500.00
EPF & ETF 29,488,149.28
Personel Emoluments - January Paid 3,434 465.34
Payment for Unused Medical Leave 50,000,000.00
Personel Emoluments - Received from Salary Dept 94,793,046.00
Fuel - Motor Vehicles 86,120.00
Repairs - Equipments 140,250.00
Service & maintenace agreements - Vouchers on Hand 15,157, 702.42
Communication Expenses 49,001.51
Sundry Expenses 1,277,212.50
Repairs - Moter Vehicle 136,618.13
Electricity Expenditure - Pump House 373,952.47

332,071,344.39
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SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AS AT 31/12/2022 ) CONTD.

Schedule : 06
Performance Deposits

Cash Deposited by Cashiers
N Lasantha
I G Nandasiri
D Vithana
E M K B Ekanayaka
G N P Wijerathne - 2014

Grocery Shop - Rent Deposit -

Perera & Sons - Rent Deposit -

Quick Linen Washing - Security Deposit
Fruit Juice Bar - Rent Deposit

Grocery Shop - Security Deposit -

Venture Ceylon Holdings - Q/27 /18 - Bond Deposit

2019
2019
2019
2021
2020

5,000.00
5,000.00
5,000.00
5,000.00

5,000.00

Annual Report - 2022

25,000.00

544,500.00
450,000.00
20,000.00
180,000.00
25,000.00

42,030.00

1,286,530.00
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SRI JAYEWARDENAPURA GENERAL HOSPITAL
SCHEDULES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (ASAT 31/12/2022 ) CONTD.

Schedule : 07

Sundry Creditors
Description Hs, Hs,
Pelawatta Sugar Corporation  Deposit for Hospital charges 25,000.00
Overseas Children School Deposit for Hospital charges 20,100.00
International Irrigation-1IMI  Deposit for Hospital charges 10,000.00
Ceylon Hotel Corporation Deposit for Hospital charges 50,000.00
Lanka Wall Tiles Ltd Deposit for Hospital charges 50,000.00
Gratuity Payable 230,675.07
Gratuity Payable - T A M Peiris - EPF 1763 750.00
Gratuity Payable 205,201.00
Adaraneeya Ammi Book 27,300.00
Cheques Cancelled 1,911,618.56
2,530,644.63

Schedule : 08
Professional Charges Payable

Description Hs,
Balance B/forward 3.616,142.00
Payable for the Year 2019 - 2022 60,572,310.00
64,188,452.00
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5.1 Auditor General’s Report

Chairman,
Sn Jayawardanepura Ceeneral Hospaial Board.,

Report of the Auditor Gemeral on the affairs of Sri Jayawardanepurn General Hospital
Boord inchuding the Fimoncial Statements and other Repulatory Requirements for the

year ended by 31 December 2022 in terms of Sectiom 12 of the MNational Audit Act No. 19
of 2008

1.2

Fimamcinl Statemenis

Ouantificd Cpinion

The Stmiermeent of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022 of Sn Jayawandanepura
Cieneral Hospiial Board, the Stwiement of Finencial Perfformance as the year ended by

said date, the Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement for the year ended

by =zaid daie amnd. Noies io the Financial Smiements, ithe Finamcial Simiemenis 2= at the
year ended by 3] December 2022 comprising with the Summary of Significant
Accouniing Policies were andited under my direction in pursasance of the provisions in
Section Mo. 154(1) of the Constiution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sn
Lanka read in conjunciion with provisions of the MNational Audit Act No. 19 of 2018 and
the Finance Act Mo. 38 of 1971. My repornt in terms of the Regulation Mo, 153(6) in the
Constitution will be presented at the Parliament in due couarse.

Except the effect made by the maiters described in the part of the basis for the gualified
opimdon in my report, my opingon is that the financial position of the Official Languages
Commission as at 3] December 2022 and, 5is financial perfformance and ithe cash flow

as at the year ended by =aid daie reflects a troe and fair position in ferms of 50 Lanka
Acoounting Standapds.

Basis for the Quontificd (fpinion ¢

CE] In terms= of Section 48 of S Lanka Public Sector Acooumting Siandard Mo O,
although aszets & liabilities and income & expenditure shall not be setled unless

in the event of required or granted by the standard, it had been siaied m the
financial statemenis that credit balances of Bs. 7.77 million hed been settled by

debnt balances in hospaal charges debior accounts, debit balances of trade

creditors amounting to Bz, 3% million had been settled by oredit balance of rade
creditors, Bs. 172,45 million incumed fior free medical irestmenis for hospital siaff

and Rs. 6049 mallson incurred for free meedical treatmenis for clergies had been
settled by hospital charges income. This had been pointed om in previous years
oo but no sieps had been taken 1o make necessary corrections.
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Bz 7247 million incurred for dmags provided free of cost for the hospital staff had

been deducted from materials and consumables used within year vnder review,
withowt stating under siaff expenzes.

In terms Paragraph 65 of Standard T of 5ri Lanka Public Sector Accounting
Standards. although fixed azsets to the cost of Rs 3681 26 million had been fully
diepreciated because the effectve life time for non-current asseis had oo been
reviewed anmually, those aseeis had farther been uzed. Accordingly, steps had ot
been mken o revise the estimated error ocoarred, in terms of Standard 7 of Sn
Lanka Public Secior Accounting Standards.

Capital pramizs of Bz 449 million meceived relsting o year F02F i Sri
Jayowardamepura Hospital hed nod been disclosed in the siatement of finemcial
perfiormance, in berms of Standard 11 of Sn Lonka Public Secior Accounting
Standards.

Hevaluation reports relating bo the lands and baildings within year 2022 had been

received by the hospatal on 09 Ocober 202F and 35 October 222, Dhepreciation
and revaluation reserve had been siated in deficit by Bs. 25 34 million because

non-depreciation for the period upio the date of revalusiion dee io the revaluaied

amounis had moi been acoounted since ] Jammary 202F.  Details relating §o
revaluated asseis also had noi been disclosed in the financial statemenis.

[epreciation and profit in ibhe year had been disclosed by Rs. 210002 in excess and
by =ame amount m deficit respectively m the financial si@icmenis becawse ihe
revaloabed had not been revaloabted as at the daie of asset valuation levier,
revaluated mmnoe 01 Janoary 2022 amd those values were accomnted by depreciating
o thee asseis.

In revalesting the land claimed by the hespital i Bs. 4,845 50 million. the extent
of the lamkd considered was 9.8047 Heclares. A= extend of the entire land claimed

by ithe hospsial was 10.22%9 Heciares, an alloiment in extent of 0.2182 Hectares
had not been revahsated.

Clear and proper meethod 10 account the recovery and refunding of professional
charges within year under review had not been sdentified by the General Hospital
Board and professional charges of Bz, 37729 paid in cash within year under
review had been debited o the professional charges payable account by orediting
profesziomal charges income of R, 40457 million o said acoount. Rs. 50083
from hospital charges sccount had been credibed o the professiomal charges
payable account on 3] December 202F without identifying the hospital charge and
profesziomal charge of those patienis who discharge from ihe hospital, based on

credit letier. Also sieps had not been taken even in the vear under review o seitle
the balance of Rs. 3 61 million in the professional charges payable acoount exisis

gince yvear | 998 or identify it as an inoome.
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According o ithe financial statements relating to 4 subjecis viz oreditors, debiors
, disiress loan and disiress loan inieresi as ai 31 [December 2022 amd |isis,
documenis and computer reconds submitied to the aodit, there was a varance of
Rs. 42.02 million and reasons for said variance had not been clanfied.

Three {((12) accoun subjects that are hospital charges debtors. irade creditors and
service charges amounting to Bs. 1.025.06 million as at 31 [ecember 222
oouldn’t ssisfacionly sorutinize or verify or accept at the aodit becasse no
evidences such as time analysiz, board approvals and subsadiary documenis eic.
were submitted to the audit.

Althowgh paymenis of BEs. 29723 million and Bs. 401.45 million payable io the
Medical Supplies Division for purchasing of drugs and other swrgical materials
respectively from 2010 to 2015 and 2016 to 2021 had been settled within previous
year with the payment of Bs. 74855 million receivable from the Minisiry of
Health againsi the heart surgeries carmied owi for the patients referred by sasd
minisiry based om a Board decision. approval from the iressury i seitle these
paymenis had not been obi@ined. Alse the amouni of Bs. B93 million receivable
from the Ministry of Heahh spent within 2017, 2018 and 3019 for University
Academies by the hospital had been szettled with the amount payable o the
Medical Supplies Division without obtaining approval from the Treaswry.

Trade creditors of above Rs. 3 million had beem wmitien off in the financial
satements as at 31 December 2022 due to the reasons such as GRN removals in
the Systolic sysiem had not been updaied m the Accpack computer system, GRN
had been recorded twice in the Accpack compuier sysiem and valwes had been
recorded with changes, payments had not been adjusied with single creditor
balances although those paymenis had been paid by Accpack compuoter sysiem
and fines and delay charges had not been adjosied within single crediior balanoes.
The net balance of Rs. 160.35 million had been adjusted o the accunmulated profit
& loss accoumt withowot preparing jourmal voochers i comect above emrors and
withow making the relevant adjustmenis by previous yvear’s adjusiment acooumi.

I conducted the andit n compliance o the Sn Lanka Awdit Standards (S.LAS). My
responsibility under thiz audit standards had furber been desoribed in the pan of
Auditor’s responsibility in relation to the financial statements in this report. My belief
is, the awdit evidences obtained by me o provide a basis for my gualified opinion is
sufficient and appropriate.

(hther information contaimned in the Anousl Repori 2021 of the Board

The information expect o provide me after the date of this audit report that had been
inclusded to the Anmual Report 2021 of the Hoard but doesn’t comain in the financial
sinfements and my audit report relatimg io thai means ‘other miormaiion”.  The
managemend is responsible for these ‘other information.
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(Mher information relating to the financial staiemenis doesn™t disclose from my opinion
amed. [ womn’t give any assurance or make judgment with regard io thai.

Regarding my awdit relating o the financial sistiemenis, my responsibility is 1o read the
other information sdentified aforesasd as and when those information could be obtained
aned. 0 consider whether those mfomation would be guantitatively incompatible with
the financial seatements or according to the knowledge 1 acguired the awdit or in another
way.

When reading the Annual Report 2021 of the Board., if | determine that there are
gquantitaiive missiatements. ihe said missmiements should be commumicated o the
controlling parties for oomecison.  If there are missatemenis that can’t be further
commected. swch mBsstaiemems will be included in my report presemied 1o the Parliament
in dse course. in terms of the Regulation Mo, 1534(6) in the Constitution.

Responsibilities of mamapement amd those charped with govermance for the
financial statements.

Managemem is responsible for the preparation of financial statememis tha give a true
ared fair view in accordance with Sm Lanka Public Sector Accoanting Standards. and for
such intermal control as management determine is necessary 10 enable the preparabon of
financial statemenis that are free from maiemal msstaiement, whether doe o fraod or
CITor.

In preparing the financial siatements. mamagement is responsible for assessing the
Board's ability to continoe a5 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. maiters relaved
te going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
cither inends 10 liguidate the Board or 0 cecase operations, or has ot realisiac
altermative bui o do so.

Those charged with govermance are responsible for overseeing the Board finencaal
repriing proscess.

As per Section 164 | ) of the Mational Awdit Act No. 19 of 2018, the Hoard 1= required io
maintain proper books and records of all is income. expenditure, assets and liabilities.
te enable the anmsal and peniodsc finencial statemenis io be prepared of the Hoand.

Auditor’s responsibility for the sndit of fimancial statements

Az a whole, the financial statermenis, my intension B (o issue the auditor's report
incloding my opinwon with a far confirmation which s free from guantified
missaemenis ooourmed dwe 1o the frands and emmors. Alibough the fair assurance is a
higher level azssumance. it won’il always be a confirmation of disclosing of the guantified
missatemenis when awditing in ierms of Sn Lank Awoditing Standards. The guantifsed
missatemeni could be occurmed due o the frawds and ermors effect singly or colleciively
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and, it is expected that an effect could be ooccurred o the sconomic decisions taken by the
uszers based on ibese financaal statements.

The andit was conducted by me in terms of Sr Lanka Awdiing Standands with
professional judgment and professional apprehensive. Further.

* The basze for my opinion is 1o obtain sufficient and appropriate asdst evidences to
avoid the rsks occurmed due o the frads or ermors in sdentifying the nsks of
gquantified wrongful statements that could be occurred in the financial staiemenis
duee to the frands and ermors and, planning the appropriate aodit procedures
suitably io the sitmation when valuating. The effect of a fraud is more powerful
than the effect of guantified wrongful statements and, fraud could be oocurred due
io collusion, forgery, avouding deliberately or avoidmg the internal controls.

# Although not in the mient of declaring an opmion abow the productivity of the

intermal controd. a knowledge about the imtemal control to plan appropriate awdit
procedures was obiained.

= The advsahility of the accounting policies used, fairmess of the accounting
estimaies and, related disclosures made by the management were evaluated.

#  The relevancy of usang the basis abowi the coninuance exisience of the instaiution
for the accounting, based on the audit evidences obtained in relstion to whether a

gquantified uncertainty about ithe continsance exsience of the Board due to the
incidents or circumstances, was deiermined. In case | determine that there is a
sufficient uncerainty, my audit repon’s stenion should be drawn towards the
disclosures made in the financial statements with regard to that and. in case sasd
disclosures are insufficient, my opinion should be apdied. However, the
comrinmance existence oould be ended based om the future incidents or
circumsiances.

* [Presentmiion of the financial siements cont@ining disclosures. struciare and
condent were evaluated and. the tronsaction and mcidenis based for that were
cvaluated as they had been inchided to the financial statements fairly and

approprately.

The controlling parties are made aware of with regard to the significant audit findings
identified within my audit, key intermal control weaknesses and other matiers.

Report on other lepal & repulatory requirements

Special provisions in relation to the following requiremenis contain in the MNational
Audit Act No. 19 of 2018.

According o the requiremenis contained in Section | 2(a) of the National Awodit Act No.
19 of 2018, except the effect of the maiters described in the part of the basis for the
guantified opinion in my report. all information and clanfications need for the awdit
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were obtamed by me and, the proper financial reports had been maimained by the
Hoard, according to my investigation.

Aocording to the requirement contained in Section 6(1) (d) figi) of the MNational Awdit
Aot Mo, 19 of 201K, the Financial Satements sobmitted by the Board swit with the
previous year.

Except the obzervations given in parmgrphs 1.2 (bl (j] and (I} in this repor, according
o the requirement contained in Sectson G611 (d) (iv] of the National Auwsds Act Mo, 19 of
201 E, the recommiendations issued by me in the previous year contain in the financial
statements presemted.

Mothing was brooghet 10 my attention o make the following statements based on the
measunes. followed, evidences obtaieed and. within restiriction o the guantitstave
makiers.

Auccording io the reguirement comained m Section 1Z2(d) of the Naonal Audit Act Moo
19 of 2018, there was a relationship excloding normal business ciroumstances directly
or by another way relating 10 amy agreement linked wiath any membser of the
management.

Auccording to the requirement contained in Section 12(f) of the National Aodit Act Moo
19 of 201 B, except the following observations, it had been acted mon-compliance 1o any

related writien law or any other general or special directives issued by the management.
Referemce to the rules and Drescoriptiomn
directives

ia} The Esiablishment Code of the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sn
Lanka

(1} Sections 2.1 and Z2Z - 24 in Althowgh recruibment procedures  most e
Chapier IT of the prepared and obiain relevant approsal  for

same following procedures stated in the
Establishment Code, the  recruitment

procedures had not been prepared and
ohtained approval even as at the daie of this

rep .

(1i} Section 3.8 in Chapeer XIX Water and electricity charges must be paid
by the officer when he'she umez government
guariers. B HEs. 300 and Bs 25 had been
charged from each person as “waler charges’
and “Changing moom” in boarding-houses
dlisregarding the consumption of residems
and electricity charge from residents had not

been charged.
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Financial Regulation of the
Democmatic Socialisi Republic of Sn
Lanka

(1] Sections 103 and 104 in
Financial Regulations

(i} Sections 3I95(b), 3I95c) in
Financial Regulations

Guideline No. 5.2 in the Procurement
Cimideline for procurement of the
Medscal Equipment for 2007

Letier Mo, DMS1T58-Yol. | dated 10

October 2016 mswed by the
Deparimeent of Management Services

Paublic Fimance Circular Mo, PFID
OE 2019 dated 17 [ecember 2019

Guideline Mo. 2.3 in the Cuideline

Although investigations o determme the
pereons who are responsible for ihe losses
oocuwr dwe o vehicle acckdents muosi e
comducied. steps had mnot been laken o
identify the responsible pariies m berms of
the Financial Regulations.

Although reconcilistion siniement for each
monith  fior the bank asocounis muost be
prepared before 15 day of next month, the
bank reconcilisiion siatemenis relating o the
main curreni account of the hospatal had been

prepared on 21 April 2023,

Although Technical Evaluation Commitiee
for purchases except purchazing at wrgent
and essential events must be consisted of a
representative from the Minisiry of Health. a
represemiative from the Staie Pharmacewical
Corporation, two consaltans  possessing
relevant
represemative momanated from the Gemeral
Treasury, members had not been appointed at
purchasing relabing to surgical equipment
amounting o Rs. 1.9 million and X-Ray
Sysiem eguipmendi amounting o Rs. 976
million according to that.

I T FTRE T expertise amd a

Although proposals o restreciare  the

approved staff must be prepared. referred to
the Salaries amd Cadre Commission oand

obiained approval from the Department of

Management Services. sieps had moi been
iaken as aforesaid even &= ot 3] December

F. |l

Although  purchasing under shopping
procuremeni  must e camied out via
clectronic system with effect from Januoary
HI20 by the entity, steps had not been nken

as aforesaid even as at the date of this report.

Although a strategic plan enabling 1o achieve
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012021 daied 16 November 2021 under review.

Mon-compliance with powers. itasks and functions of the Hoard, according to the
requirement contamed in Section 12 (g) of the National Auwsdn Act Mo, 19 of 20018,

Aocording io the requirement contained in Section 12 {h] of the Mational Awndit Act Koo
1% of 2018, Commission’s resources had not been procured and used economically.,
efficiently and productively within relevant time periods in compliance with relevant
rules and regulations excoept following obserations.

la)

ik

The contract of removing wasie which had been awarded o the private company
at Rz, 465 million for the year 2002 ] had been awarded at Bs. 7.25 million
for the year 20222023, Following maitters regarding that are obzerved.

(i}

(i}

{Eii}

Although quaniny of normal mixed wasie in the hospital removed per day
is between 400-5{00 Kg. which had been sdentified by the Public Health
Inspector. it was observed that a lomy io which could be loaded 5006 K g.
armives daily io the hospital n terms of the agreement.  Accordingly, a loss
had been oocarmred 1o the hospital becanse procurement bhad not been done
simdying the quantity of wasie collecis in the hospital and sdentifying the
hospital’s requinemeent, before o call tender.

Although lomy must be armived within prescribed time o remove the

waste, it was observed according o the sample test that 70 days had not
been armived within prescribed time and therefore the doe sopervision

process had not been carried out in lerms of Section Tib) in the agreementd.

In terms of Gusdeline 5.4.8 in the Procurement Guideline., although a
performanmce security which musi be walid for 28 days after the daie of the
coniract expecied o be compleied. the relevant peniod bhad mot been
coverned by the securty produoced.

In termis of the security service agreemeni dated 3 December 2020 relating to the
year 20021 entered into by and between the hospital and a private companmy,
the contract company had been agreed to provide services for a period of one year
with effect from 01 November 220 at a contract price of Rs. 246 million per
month. Following matters in this regard are observed.

(i}

(i}

The security service had been continwed for a period of 14 months from
time to time withowt an anmual procurement and sieps had ot been taken
i ember inio servioe agreemenis af F oocassions, & prescobed.

In terms of Section 2(c) in the service agreemend. althowgh it had been
stabed that copies of the receipis issoed for the payment of contribuwions bo
the Employees Provident Fund and the Employees Trust Fund muost e

in the the ohjectives in the st must be prepared.
Moo  such plan had ot been prepared for the year
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submitted by the service providing company. the paymenis had been maxde
witthowt getiing the relevant conformations.

As siwied in the service agreemeni for year 2Z17Z022, the mumber of
employees o be deployed in the day shafi is 42 and i was ohserved ikhat
ihe number emplovess engaged in duty within 07 months in the year 2022
was ol & moge of 21 - 2B, Accordingly. it was problematic whether proper
securnty services is rendered by the relevamn company. as expecied.

(c] Cleaning service (janitorial s=ervice) in S Jayawardamepura Geeneral Hosital
relating o year DZ12022 and WEXN2I hasd been awarded o 2 companies.
Follwing matters regarding the contineance of cleaning services i the hospital,
griting this service by the hospaial and payments made for ithat are observed.

(il

(i}

{Eiih

(i

86

Although 1 had been included in ihe service agreemenis as a comdition ikat
all cleaning chemicals used when provading services must have been
approved and confimed their quality by Sri Lanka Siandard Insitation or
Industrial Thechmology Institute. it had not been evalusied whether the
cCleaning chemicals agreed io provide by the bidders are in compliance
with ibe 515 Standards and the prices saobmitted for those chemicals by
the bidders are fair. because the labomtory reporis needed o confirm the
above matber bad mot been demanded by the bidding documenis.

Chaality of the chemicals must had not been confirmed from time o time in
terms of the agreement becausze the minimum crierias about the cleaning
chemicals which must be provided by the suppliers had mot been
egabliched. According to the lsbormtory test reports issued in relation o 6
cleaning chemicals by the Techmical Insiitute, it had been confirmed that 5
chemicals were not according io the presoribed standard. i was observed
that the payment of Bs. 665639 made to the sapplier by the hospital for
chemicals for the agreement year of 20212022 was an non-eCconormic
payment and Hs 3R 0K had also been paid for December 222X and
Jamuary 2023 for getting chemicals withoat an inspection aboot standand.
relaiing o the spreement year of 222 HZY oo,

Cheemical stocks received monihly by ithe hospital had been kept uder the
custody of Public Health Inspecior in the hospatal and the cleaning service
providing insistution and there were variances at a range of 5 liters io 160
liters than the siocks that were in the hospil and berween ithe sbocks
indicated on that day by the compwier sysiem in the hospital which was
detected at the phy=zical mspection camried ow on 25 Jamuary 2023 in this
regard.

In terms of Condition Mo, (dj in the agreement, althowgh cleaning
chemicals and equipment provided by the sapplier must be issued io the
heads of each division by the storekeeper in the hospital a5 per there
reguirement, the cleaning manerials had been issoed o the supplier's siores
in the hospital conirary to above and withowt a bazis. Stocks that were in
ihe supplier’s siores had not been @ken into consideration thereby. Doe o
ihis reason. a siock of lGlass Cleaner of 245 liters relating to the previoas
year agreemend year was in the supplier’s store and observed thai there
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were cleaning chemicals in the stores which had been exceeded the
monthly  requirement. Accordingly, there was a risk of vanous
imegularities relaiing io ihe cleaning maierials such as allowing supplier io
provide cleaning chemicals and eguipmemt which muoest be provided
monthly to the bhospital ai his own discretion, availability of cleaning
chemicals stocks which are not disclosed by the hospital’s compater
sysieme allowing 10 continue the cleaning chemicals which were exeeded

the monthly reguirement withowt due supervision eic.
The clnscal wasie buming machine which bhad been porchased on 03 Movember

206 from a prvaie mstitution @ a price of s, 33 54 million {with YAT) bad
been weed by a private instiftion and ibe hospital siaff as well and bami the
climical wasie since December 2016 o date.  Following mabiers af the inspection
made with regard io the wiilization and mainianaece of this machine were
disclosed.

(il When purchesing ihe machine, its cosi including maintenance services had
not been evaloated becawse it had been sinied thet ithe machine™s
mainienances works could be dome by the hospital’s mainienamce siaff af a
low cost and efficiently. The Techmical Evaluation Commiitee had been
recommended o purchase only machine without a8 mainienance service
agreement and therefore the tender of lowest price amounting to Bs. 2635
million 1o which included the maimenance service of 6 vears after the 02
yvears” wamanty period. In terms of ihe service agreement entered imio, Rs
401 million hesd been spent by the hospital & service chages as ai the dabe
of audit viz |0 Febroary 2023, Accordingly, the Technical Evaluation
Commiitee”s decision io save Bs. 10 million io ithe hospital within a period
of My years due o0 evaluation without adding ihe mainienanoe expenses of
the machine when parchasing it. had not been effectve.

(il Clinical wastes are daily burng by ithe climical waste burning machine
{Incinerator) and the concrete pits to which disposed the ash remain from
above process have already been filled amnd therefore, ash had presently
been disposed without a proper method harmfully o the hospital
environment. h was observed s the audit than health threat could be arisen
wihtin upcomming ramy season due to collecting of ash removed from the
machine at the open space. Accordingly. there is a risk of losing the
permission o operate the waste buming machine based on the breach of
conditions when remewing the Environment Protection Licemse (EPL)
which is obtained from the Central Environment Awnthority, due to above
reason.

Comeract of constnecting a three storeyed building for the hospital work shop and
o continue offices for the garden cleaning s@ff had been awarded at a price of
E7.02 million {withowt VA T) on 09 Movember 2016, Twelve containers had been
renied at a monihly renial of R, 257 (W because the building im which the work

shop established had been demolished at the begnmnig of consmuction of the
building aforesaid. An additonal rent of Hs. 14.3% for 56 months as at 31
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December 2022 hawd been inourred o the hospaial becanse construction works of
the building had not been completed by April 2008 in terms of the agreement.

X Diber mesiters

(a] Follvving matters were observed at the inspection of using (4 aquipment for patient
sample iesis, exisied at the biochemistry laboraiory.

(i

]

(iii)

(ivh

(¥l

[Ckasta in the eguipment of Fully Antomaied Analyser-Abbott Architect TR
had not been taken o amother data sioring umit {aking Backup)] onoe in a
precise time, considering the daily use of ihe equipment aforesaid.

[t was also unable to check whether how many tesis had been carmied out
using the equipment becawse entering dam inte the eguipment, altering and
deleting them could be done nsing AT TN password instead MLT passwornd
by the labormiory to pel accesses o the eguipmeent.

The reactives and other comsumable maierials Bsuing book maintined by
ihe laboraiory had not been updated within the year under review so that the
nformation such az; on which days reacitves for the squipment had been
issued, how many tesis had been carried oat using old reactives at the event
of issuing a reaciive newly, the reesons if expecied number of fests coldn™
obi@min from the reactive and information o confirm whether they ame
sapervised by the hospital management were ol possessed by ibe hospital

The relevant data had been eniered inte the hospital information system at 11
oocassions without a precise time frame by way of confirming the accuracy
amd timeliness of the information provided by the information system
established in the hospital.

Acoording 1o the information system in the hospital. 203 reactiive sets (of
which cost was Bxs. 16,19 million) had been wsed for 27 types of esis cammied

out by the Fully Awomated Chemisiry Amalyvser-Abboit O B0 equipment.

Althowgh number of tesis coald be camried out according to the standard ose
is about 291164, the number of tests carmied out acoording 1o the hMonthby

Stmtistics Sheeis was 127804 which was a minimum percentage of 447%% out
of the standard nse. The hospital management had not been pasd its attention

towards the effective use of abombory equipment throweh providing services
for pexternal patients.

(bl [Betails relsiing 1o the amount paid © the Doctors amnd other s@if as professional
charpges relevant o ibe paying wards from 220 o 222 and ibhe Income received
from those wards contain in the table below.

2020 i Ly i | PP
Fs. K= Es.
The proessional fee charped 163 441 668 L6 TR AS6A 514 552 31F

Income received from paying wards 232 000926 2R 583 346 342 927 187

Toial

595 842,594 648.33].702 BSTATRS5IS

Poagme= 12 of 16
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Followmg maiters regarding this are observed.

(i)  Professional charges for the surgenies and tests camied o extraneously 1o the
duty time using hospital resources had been determaned at the discretion of
Specialis Dociors without a standard or precise policy and steps to establish
siandards of determining these charges for the hospital had not been taken by
the management.

(i} Rs 666 million had been charged as professonal charges for ™9 surgenies
camed for the patienis in paying wards within normal duty time at the main
operation thestre in 2022,

(i) Swrgeries had been carried owi by 10 external Doctors who don't belong 1o
the hospital staff within year 2022 using hospital resources and Rs. 2378
million had been charged by those Dociors from patients as professional
charges within said year. Only service charge of 0.15% out of above amount
had been charged o the bhospital. Approvals relating to engage in private
service in the hospital by extemnal Doctors and chargang of professional fees
had not been submitied to the awdit. 1t was observed that the patienis”
responsibility s assigned o the hospital because the hospital had not been
endered into an agreemem with those Dociors.

{ivy BRs 11028 million had beem paid in 2022 as professional charges for the
Aszgistanit Doctors and other siaff on a Board decismon withow cabinet
approval.

(v} Service charge credited o the board’s income out of the total professional
charges amounting to Rs. 514 55 mallion which had been paid to the siaff

within year 2022 was only Rs. 773,312, Steps had not been taken by the
managemeni i make necessary amendmenis appropriately o the service
charge of 0.15% which is coming since year 1999

(vi} Payee taxes on the professional charges refunded to the Specialist Dociors
andd other staff had not been charged and toial of the payee taxes which had

e been dedocted as aforesaid for 2004, 2015 and 2006 was Rs. 108.52
million.

An officer to cover the dies of the Depwty [Nrecior which was vacant had been
recraiied on 2B July 2021 on temporary basis on a Board decision without approval

of the Public Service Commission and Rs 1.19 million and Rs. 2.98 million had
been paid for allowances and salaries respectively relating 1o an appointment of

oovering duties comtrary o Section 3.7 of Chapter Il in the Establishment Code.
List of additional duties assigned relsting 1o the payvmem of Bs. 2,69 million for the
additional duty allowances had not been suobmiited to the audn. The officer had
been engaged in the service above | ' years by now and steps had nod been taken
to filll the vacancy on permanent basis even as af the daie of awdsd viz 24 March
223
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In terms of the Extra Ordinary Gazetie Moo 208022 dated 16 July 2018, relating 1o
the allowances increased by the govermment for the emplovees engaged in the
cleaning service industry, Rs. 230 million had been paid to the supplier by S
Jayawardanepura General Hospatal as arrears of cleaning services without obiaining
receipis 10 confirm the payvment of contribuions to the Employees’ Trust Fund for
the pernied from August 2018 to Ociober 2018,

Following maiters which was observed at the inspection of files relating to the legal
actions taken for the cases of the hospital are stated.

(i) Regarding professional charges payable to the Specialisi Dociors for years
2008 and 20809, a frand had been detected and conducted a preliminary
investigation in 2012. According io the report of the relevant desplinary
inguiry, o had been direcied o recover the cheated amount of Bs. 1.05
million and court measures shall be taken o recover the same in case failed
o recover within one momh.  Although it had been informed that count
measures will be taken to recover the sasd amount, it had not been recovered
even as ai the end of the year under review and action had been filed in the
Diisinct Couwrt of Mugegoda afier a delay of 02 years. Alithough letiers
addresing the head of the instituton had been semt by the Department of

Anomey General adyvising to produce the relevant evidences for the case on
|5.05. 2020, 24.06.2020, 12,08 2020 and 16.04.2021, more than one year

had been consumed to provide the information.

(i) An officer served azs a Mamgement Assistani in Sm Jayawardanepurm
Cieneral Hospital had been terminated from service with effect from 24 July
2013 afier the preliminary investigation and disciplinary inquiry conducted
regarding a rip-off made by him. According to the case filed in Homagama
Labour Tribanal by the officer and the order delivered at the appeal case
instituted by the hospital relating 1o thai. it had been informed that the
officer shall be reinsiated on the same post which he held. on the present
mlary step. without service breaking, after a payment of Es. 198 million.
Aocordingly. the hospital had to incur an dle expense of Rs. 198 million as
milanies for the period of the service stopped.

(ki)  According to the judgment of the case filed in the Appeal Court by a former
officer (female) who held the post of Staff Assistant agamst suspending her
from service and deducting salaries based on a Board decision, the officer
had been reinstated and the hospital was compelled to pay Rs. 91,985 for
the salaries deducted.

Although building constructed with the objective of continuing the administrative
matiers m the hospital had been @aken over on OF May 2021, it had not been used
for the matier of objective even as at the daie of this report.

There were 16 vehicles clasmed by Sn Jayawardanepura Hospiatal and following
matters were detecied at the audit examination carried ow regarding those vehicles.



(i)
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As per the National Budget Circular Mo, 150, althowgh 05 years had been Lapsed by
receivin 6 vehicles o the hospital from the Department of National Budget on a
requed made by the Minisery of Health, steps had not been taken to acguire those
vehicled even as i ithe dabe of this report.

A wehicle received by this hospital from the Ministry of Finance in 2018 had been
faced an acckdent on 22 November 20019 and the responsible persons had not been
determined by condectng investigations in terms of Finencial Fegulations.
According o an estimaie dated 2 Cktober 2022 amouniing o Bs. 489 200
submitied by a private company, the vehicle had been sent for repair bui ot is
problematic whether those expenszes could be covered by the inmorance claim
becanse time above 03 years had been lapsed.

Three vehicles claimed by the hospital are ot in nenning posidon even as ag 10
March 2023 because repairs of thoze vehicle had not been carried out on due daes.

Two hwendred thiry one (231) officers for 02 cabegories of posis exceeding
approved cadre and 08 officers for 05 positions which were not in the approved
siaff had been appoinied &= at 3] December 2022 without secking approval from
the Departmem of Management Services.

Following maiters were detecied at the awsdit examination camed out regarding

additical dwy allowances, overtime and holiday payments made for the medical
siaff and nursing and supplemeniary ivemim medical service siaff.

(i) A policy decizion had been taken by cabinet decision No. 96/ 1347/120/143
dated 17 July 1996 o maimdain the salary gap among varnous grades in Sn
Jayowardamepurn Hospatal and ihe paralle]l prades in the Minisiry of Health or
parallel posis in other deparimenis at 35%. As per the Boand decision Moo
402:02:17 dated 15 March 2018 and under General Circular of the Ministry
of Health, Rz 14355 million, Bs. 16845 million and Rs. 159.2] million had

been paid in 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively for additional allowances and
overtime allowances for the officers in medical, nursing and supplementary
medical service adding 3576 and placing @ a higher mie valee ihan the
allowance granted by the circular.  Information o confirm whether a cabinet
approval or ireasury approval with regard to above had been obiamed, were
ot submitied to the audit.

(1) Comparing the list of surgemes main@ined in the main operation theatre and
paymmeent vouchers for additional duties of medical staff which were taken as a
sample test by the audit. Rs. 545 million had also been charged as
profeszional charges by medical siaff for carrying ol operailons engaging in
private service within ibhe period of additional allowances obimined.

(i Ad the sample aodit examination condwcied abowi holiday allowances for
medical staff, it was observed that professional charges had been charged by

some medical officers engaging in private service within the period of holiday
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allowances obiained. According to the list of surgerses of the paying wands
camied out in the main operation theastre which was nken as a sample test, the
total of profezssion allowances charged by 07 Dociors as aforesaid was R

2.5 million

(ji  The overall performamee in the hogpital wathin year under review and last 05 years

i= was as follows.

15
M. of beds in the hospital L0601

Beds wtilization (75) fis

Moo of patéenis admatied SER49
Patienis" pariscipaison for clinics IEX 170
Moo of patients atiended o Ohai 2T 592

Patient [hvisson

Todal Moo of deaths T45
Mo of variowus tesis carnied ot 1507, 104
Mo, of various surgeries camied out 15231

2009 2010 2021 2021
1.5 1.072 a3 laE
i 52 54 55
il 466 45,976 Xalt 42633
19 T16 13&, 502 136,085 153,143
23010 16,307 13337 19,537
BT 597 El3 721
1663527 L244.598 1241800 1251270
15347 11 3E8 11,109 15,100

Following maiters in this regard are observed.

(il Mumber of beds and utilizstion of beds in the bospital m 2022 comparing eo
year 2 B had been decreaszed by 5%% and 11.5%5 regpectively. Mumber beds
and wtalization of beds in 2022 comparing o yvear 321 had been increased

boy 15%% amd 1% respectively.

(b It was obzerved that progress of the tests and zargeries carmed out by the
hospital had been increased and number of tests and swreeries i 2022

comparing o yvear 2021 had been moreased by 9,470 and 1,991 respectively.

(iif)  Mumber of patients admitied 1o the hospital. number of patients attended o
clinics and number of patients attended o Ow Padent Davision comparing
o year 2021 had been increased by T0%, 1396 and 46%% regpectively.

WL, Wickramarathna
Auditor General
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Report of the Auditor General on the affairs of Sn Jayawardanepura General Hospital Board
mncluding the Financial Statements and other Regulatory Requirements for the vear ended by 31
December 2022 m terms of Section |2 of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018

Audit Observations

Measores taken to correct

1.2

Basis for the Quantified Opinion

(a)

In terms of Section 48 of Sn Lanka Public
Sector Accountmg  Standard No. 01,
although assets & habilities and income &
expenditure shall not be settled unless 1n
the event of required or granted by the
standard, 1t had been stated m  the

financial statements that credit balances
of Rs. 7.77 million had been settled by

debit balances in hospital charges debtor
accounts, debat balances of trade creditors

amounting to Rs. 0.39 milhon had been

scitled by credit balance of trade
creditors, Rs. 17245 mullion incumred for

free medical treatments for hospital staff
and Rs. 6049 mullion incuwrred for free

medical treatments for clermies had been

scttled by hospital charges income. This
had been pointed out 1n previous years too

but no steps had been taken to make
NECCSSary Comections.

Cormrection of errors in debtor and creditor
sub accounts occurred since year 2016 in
the Accpac accounting svstem by which the
hospital’s accounting matters are carned out
were done by Debit Notes and Credit Notes
under previous years' adjustments. Emors
in the credit letters of debtors as well as
errors 1n the Goods Recerving Notes (GRN)
of Creditors were correct under the method
aforesaid. These errors may become correct
in future because the debtor accounts wall
be arranged m the Systolic system too.

Cost of medical treatments for the hospatal
staff will be entered as Staff Cost within

Stratergic Business Unit which 1s due to be

implemented 1n future and the cost of
medical treatments for reigious clergies

will be indicated as overhead expenses.

(b)

Rs. 7247 mlhon incurred for drugs

provided free of cost for the hospital staff
had been deducted from matenals and

consumables used within vear under
review, without stating under staff
CXPCNScs.

SPC Free Medical Drugs Expenditure

As stated above, cost of medical treatments
for the hospital staff will be entered as Staff
Cost within Stratergic Business Unit which
15 due to be mplemented in future.

(c)

In terms Paragraph 65 of Standard 7 of Sn
Lanka Public Sector  Accounting
Standards, although fixed asscts to the
cost of Rs 3,681.26 milhion had been fully
depreciated because the effective hife time
for non-current assets had not been
reviewed annually, those assets  had
further been used. Accordingly, steps had
not been taken to revise the estimated
error occurred, in terms of Standard 7 of
Sn Lanka Public Sector Accounting
Standards.

About 30% of this matter has presently been
correcied and 1 expect to finalize 1t as soon
as possible workimg with the officers
nominated by Bio Medical Engineening
Division in the Ministry of Health because
the hospital docns't  possess  expert
knowledge needed to revaluate the medical

cquipment.
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(d)

Capatal grants of Es. 44.9 mullion received
relaing to wyear 2022 to  Sn
Jayawardancpura Hospital had not been
disclosed m the statement of fimancial
performance, in terms of Standard 11 of
Sn Lanka Public Sector Accountng
Standards.

(e}

Revaluanon reports relating to the lands
and buildings within year 2022 had been
received by the hospital on 09 October
2022 and 25 October 2022. Depreciation
and revaluation reserve had been stated
deficit by Rs. 25.34 million because non-
deprecianon for the penod upto the date
of revaluation due to the revaluated
amounts had not been accounted since 01
January 2022 Detals relating  to
revaluated asscts also had not been
disclosed n the financial statements.

Will be corrected. Details relating to the
revaluated assets will also be disclosed in

the financial statements.

(f)

Depreciation and profit in the vear had
been disclosed by Rs. 210,02 in excess
and by same amount m deficit
respectively m the fmancial statements

because the revaluated had not been
revaluated as at the daie of asset valuation
letter. revaluated smce 01 January 2022
and those values were accounied by

depreciating to the assets.

Will be comected when preparing  final
accounts for year 2023 by adjusting to the
retained profit.

(E)

In revaluating the land clamed by the
hospital to Rs 484550 mullon, the
extent of the land considered was 98047
Hectares. As extent of the entire land
claimmed by the hospital was 10,229
Hectares, an allotment in extent of 0.2182
Hectares had not been revaluated.

Will be revaluated to the extent of the land
descnibed 1 the plan.

(hj

Clear and proper method to account the
recovery and refunding of professional
charges within year under review had not
been identified by the General Hospital
Board and professional charges of Rs.
377.20 paid in cash within vear under
review had been  debited 1o the
professional charges pavable account by
crediting professional charges income of
Rs. 404.57 mallion to said account. Rs.

Professional charges were added to the
hospital bill with effect from October 2022
and balance of the hospatal charpes
controlling account will be comected by
that. Professional charges of those patenis
who discharge by Credit Notes could be
identified correctly n future because the
Systolic system and AccPac accounting
system will be hinked. Steps will be taken
to wdentfy the balances of professional
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5083 from hospital charges account had
been credited to the professional charges
payable account on 31 December 2022
without 1dentifving the hospital charge
and professional charge of those pabents
who discharge from the hospital, based on
credit letter.  Also steps had not been
taken even m the year under review to
seitle the balance of Rs. 3.61 milhon in
the professional charges payable account
exists since year 1998 or identify it as an
Income.

charges coming since 1998, as an income.

(1)

According to the fimancial statements

relaiing to 04 subjects viz creditors,
debtors . distress loan and distress loan

interest as at 31 December 2022 and hsts,

documents and computer records
submitted to the audit, there was a

vanance of Rs. 42.02 million and reasons

for said vanance had not been clanfied.

(1) List of individual creditor balances

According to the financial staiements and
documents, changes in the balances had
been occurred due to defects in the systems
since vear 2016 and when entenng data fo
the system (Human Emor). Correction fo
ideninfy these changes have been mitated

since year 2023,

(1) List of indrvidual debtor balances

According to the financial statements and
documents, changes n the balances had
been occurred due o defects in the systems
smce year 2016 and when entering data to

the system (Human Emor). Correchon fo
identify these changes have been mihated

since year 2023,

{111} Dhstress Loan Balance

It 15 admtted that there 5 a change m the

distress loan balance reports and the subject
officers have been mstructed to find out

reasons for the relevant changes.

]

Three (03) account subjects that arc
hospatal charges debtors. trade creditors
and service charges amounting to Rs.
1,025.06 million as at 31 December 2022
couldn’t satisfactonly scrutimze or venfy
or accept at the audit because no
evidences such as time analvsis, board

approvals and subsidiary documents ctc.
were submitted to the auda.

(1) Professional Charges

Steps will be taken to find out the relevant

Board decisions and submatted to the audit.

(11)Time analysis — Creditors and Debtors

Time analvsis reporis covenng the arrears
penied which 15 presently avanlable through
system had been
provided to the audit. Answer will be given
by ascertaiming whether the time limuts

Accpac  accounting

could be changed as requested.
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(k)

Although payments of Rs. 297.23 million
and Rs. 40145 mulhon pavable to the
Medical Supplics Division for purchasing
of drugs and other surgical matenals
respectively from 2010 to 2015 and 2016
to 2021 had been settled within previous
vear with the payment of Rs. 74855
milhon recevable from the Mimstry of
Health against the heart surgenes camed
out for the patients referred by sawd
ministry based on a Board decision,
approval from the treasury to settle these
payments had not been obtamed. Also the
amount of Rs. 893 million receivable
from the Mimstry of Health spent withim
2017, 2018 and 2019 for Umversity
Academies by the hospital had been
settled with the amount pavable to the
Medical Supplies Division  without
obtaining approval from the Treasury.

Although effort o recover these moneys
were taken since number of years, but
couldnt and the relevant settlements were
done under a Board approval. Discussions
relating to this matter with General Treasury
arc in progress so that these could be
recovered in future.

il

Trade creditors of above Rs. 3 mullion had
been wntten off i the financial
statements as at 31 December 2022 due to
the reasons such as GRN removals in the
Systolic system had not been updated m
the Accpack computer system, GRN had
been recorded twice m the Accpack
computer system and values had been
recorded with changes, payments had not
been adjusted wath indrvidual creditor
balances although those payments had
been pmd by Accpack computer svstem
and fines and delay charges had not been
adjusted within  individual  creditor
balances. The net balance of Rs. 160,35
milhon had been adjusted o the
accumulated profit & loss  account
without prepanng journal vouchers to
correct above ermors and without makng
the relevant adjustments by previous
year's adjustment account.

Errors in the Accpac balance system could

be corrected only by Debat Note and Credit

note. Journal vouchers for that can’t be
used. Only corrections among two accounts
in the mamn ledger could be done by journal
vouchers. Both main ledger and sub-ledger
must be comected in the comrections of
creditors and debtors. These adjustments
had been done through previous years’
adjustment account. The balance of Rs.
160365~ mn sad previous vears' account
had been mdicated in the final accounts by
crediting to the profit & loss account. Steps
to correct this amount will be taken in
future.

(m}

According o the accounting standard
relating to debtors, although 5% must be
allocated for bad debis according to the

accepted method. profit n the vear under
review had been stated in excess by Rs.
780 million due o computation of bad

Will be corrected when prepanng accounts
for year 2023 by adjusting to the retained
profi.
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debt allocations i deficit by Rs. 789
million, non-compliance to above.

Steps had not been taken about 05
individual debtor balances amounting to
Rs. 1397 million relating to the period
from 2016 to 2021 viz to recover those
moneys or remove from accounts on

appropriate approvals.

Steps will be taken to recover or wnite off
those moneys.

(o)

Although hospital charges amounting to
Rs. 19.96 receirvable from patients within
debtor balance from 2016 to 2019 had
been cut off from accounts within year
under review, the Board approval relatmg
to that was not submitted to the andit.

Mo anv hill had been released since later
part of 2019 up to date. The value exists
since 2016 will be submatied to the Board of

Directors and act on its decision.

(P}

Pre-work advance of Rs. 17.99 had been
stated n financial statements as works m
progress without stating as advances.
Although pre-work advance amounting to
Rs. 945 mulhon relating to 02 toulet
rchabihtation projects in 2018 and 2020
out of the amount aforesawd had been
setiled, the relevant adjustments
financial statements had not been made.

These works had been indicated n the
schedule of the works 1n progress, only
when producing  the pre-advance final
accounts. Steps will be taken to adjust the
amounts of 1,152,547/ and Rs. §,623,760/-
which had been settled.

qh

Although capitalizanon of women's
reswdential bunlding to Rs. 64 36 million in
excess n 2021 and removal of Rs. 7295
in excess from works m progress account
had been poanted out by last audit report,
corrections relevant to that had not been
made even within the year under review.

The relevamt adjustment couldnt make
because all bwldings were revaluated n
2022. Steps will be taken to comrect by
accounts for 2023,

I conducied the audit in comphance to the Sn Lanka Audit Standards (5.L_AS).

responsibility under this audit standards had further been descnbed m the part of Auditor’s
responsibility in relation to the financial statements in this report. My belief 15, the audit
evidences obtained by me o provide a basis for my gualified opinion 15 suffickent and

approprate.

My

1.2

(ther information contained in the Annual
Report 2022 of the Board

The informaton expect to provide me after the
date of this audit report that had been included to
the Annual Report 2022 of the Board but doesn't
contam mn the financial statements and my audit
report relating to that means “other informaton’.
The manazement i responsible for these “other
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mformation.

Other formation relating o0 the fmancial
statements doesn't disclose from my opmon
and, | won't give any assurance or make
judgment with regard to that.

Regarding my awdit relating to the financial
statements, my responsibility 15 to read the other
mformation wentified aforesaid as and when
those mformation could be obtaned and. to
consider whether those informabon would be
quantitatively mcompatible with the fmancial
statements or according to the knowledge 1

acquired the audit or in another way.

When reading the Annual Report 2022 of the
Board, of | determine that there are quantitative
misstatements, the smid misstatements should be
communicated to the controlling parties for
correction.  If there are musstatements that can't
be further corrected, such misstatements wall be
mcluded in my report presented to the Parhament
m due course, in terms of the Regulation No.
I54{6) 1n the Constitution.

1.4

Responsibilities of management and those
charged with governamce for the fimancial
statements.

Management 15 responzsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and far view
in accordance with Sn Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standards, and for such mtemal
control as management determine 1s necessary to
cnable the preparanion of financial statements
that are free from matenial misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In prepanng  the financial  statements,
management 15 responsible for assessing the
Board's ability to continue a5 a goang concern,
disclosing. as applhicable, matters related to gommg
concern and using the gpommg concern basais of
accounting unless management either mtends to
hgquidate the Board or to cease operations, or has
not realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible
for oversceing the Board financial reporting

Process.
As per Section 16(1) of the National Audit Act

No. 19 of 2018, the Board 15 required to mamtain
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proper books and records of all s income,
expenditure, asscts and habihitics, to enable the
annual and penodic financial statements to be
prepared of the Board.

1.5

Auditor’s responsibility for the auodit of
financial statements

As a whole, the financial statements, my
mtension 15 to 1ssue  the auditor’s  report
mcluding my opmion with a far confirmation
which 15 free from quantified musstatements
occurred due to the frands and errors. Although
the fawr assurance s a hgher level assurance, it
won't always be a confirmation of disclosing of
the quaniificd misstatements when audiing
terms of Sn Lank Auditing Standards. The
guantified misstatement could be occurred due to
the frauds and errors effect singly or collectively
and, it 15 expected that an effect could be
occurred to the economic decsions taken by the
users based on these financial statements.

The audit was conducted by me m terms of Sn
Lanka Audiing Standards with professional
judgment  amd  professwonal  apprehensive.
Further,

¢ The base for my opimion B o obtan
sufficient and appropnate audit evidences to
avold the nsks occurred due to the frauds or
errors 1 identifving the nsks of quantified
wrongful statements that could be occurred
m the financial statemenis due to the frauds
and errors and, planning the appropnate
audit procedures suitably to the siuation
when valuating. The effect of a fraud 15
more powerful than the effect of quantified
wrongful statements and, fraud could be
occurred due to collusion, forgery, avouding
deliberately or avouding the  mtcrnal
controls.

# Although not in the intent of declanng an
opinien about the productivity of the mternal
contrel, a knowledge about the mternal
control to plan appropnate audit procedures
was obtained.

¢ The advisability of the accountmg policies
used, faimess of the accounting estimates
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and, related disclosures made by the
management were evaluated.

# The relevancy of using the basis about the
continuance existence of the institution for

the accounting, based on the audit evidences

obtained 1n relation to whether a quantified
uncertanty about the continuance existence
of the Board due to the modents or
circumstances, was determmned. In case |
determme  that there 15 8 sufficiemt

uncertainty, my audit report’s attention
should be drawn towards the disclosures

made in the financial statements with regard
to that and, n case smd disclosures are

msufficient, my opimon should be audited.
However. the continuance existence could

be ended based on the future incidents or

CIFCUMmstances.

&« Presentation of the financial statements

contaming disclosures, structure and content
were evaluated and, the transaction and

mcidents based for that were evaluated as
they had been mcluded to the financial
statements fawly and appropnately.

The controlling parties are made aware of with
regard to the significant audit findmgs wdentificd

withim my audit, key internal control weaknesses
and other matters.

| B
H

Report om  other legal &  regulatory
requirements

2.1 Special provisions i relaton to the
following requirements contain m the
National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018,

2.1.1 | According to the reqguirements contmned
m Section 12{a) of the National Audit
Act No. 19 of 2018, except the effect of
the matters descnibed 1n the pant of the
basis for the quantified opmion i my
report, all information and clanfications
need for the audit were obtained by me
and. the proper financial reports had been
maimntained by the Board. according to
my Investigation.
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(]

According to the requirement contained
m Section 6(1) (d) (i) of the National
Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the Fmancial
Statements submitted by the Board sunt
with the previous year.

Except the observations given m
paragraphs 1.2 (a) and (p) n this report,
according to the requirement contained m

Section 6(1) (d) {1v) of the National Audit
At No 19 of 2018  the

recommendations 1ssued by me i the

previous vear contain in the financial
statements presented.

Nothing was brought to my attention to
make the following statements based on
the measures followed, evidences
obtained and, withm restriction 1o the
guantitative matters.

According to the requirement contained
m Section 12(d) of the National Audit
Act No. 19 of 2018, there was a
relationship excluding normal business
circumstances directly or by another way
relatmg to any agreement linked with any
member of the management.

According to the requirement contaned
m Section 12{f) of the National Audnt

Act No. 19 of 2018, except the followmg
observations, 1t had been acted non-

compliance to any related wntten law or
any other general or special directives
isucd by the management.

Reference to the roles and directives

Establishment Code of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sn Lanka

Although recruitment procedures must be
prepared and obtain relevant approval for
same following procedures stated in the
Establishment Code, the recrutment
procedures had not been prepared and
obtained approval even as at the date of
this report.

Although task of prepanng the recruntment
procedures assigned to an external party, it
was unsucessful and steps were taken to get
it achieved by an mternal party which also
was  unsuccessful. Accordingly, a
committee consists of external officers from
the mstitution had been appomnted m terms
of the Board Decision No. 469:12:02 two
solve the human resources ssues. It has
been decided to prepare the recruntment
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procedure based on the informatnen given
after solving the human resources 1ssues.

Ii.

Scction 5.8 m Chapter XIX

Water and clectneity charges must be
paid by the officer when he'she uses
governmeni guarters. But Rs. 200 and
Rz 25 had been charged from each
person as “water charges” and “Changing
room’ m boarding-houses disregardmg
the consumption of residents and
electnicity charge from residents had not

been charged.

Steps will be taken to fix meters to measure
the residential consumption of water and
clectnity and charge accordingly.

(bj

Financial Regulaton of the Democratc
Socialist Republic of Sn Lanka

Sections 103 and 104 1n Financial

Rcgulations

Although investigations o determuine the
persons who are responsible for the
losses occur due to wehicle accidents
must be conducted, steps had not been
taken to identify the responsible parties
m terms of the Financial Regulations.

Steps to conduct inveshgations regadimg the
accidents taken place n wear 2019, to

identify the relevant responsible persons for
the relevant losses and take necessary steps

had not been taken by the then
admimstration.

But nocessary  stesps to conduct
investigations regarding the accidents take
place presently are taken m terms of
Financial Regulation 103 and 104.

Ii.

. a1l - . . =
Regulations

Although reconciliation statement for
cach month for the bank accounts must
be prepared before 15 day of next
month. the bank reconciliabion statements
relatmg to the mam current account of

the hospatal had been prepared on 21
April 2023,

Financial Regulations 395 / 3196
We were compelled o further check the

bank reconciliations because there were
differences when prepanng them. Hence, |
admat that we were unable o submit the

bank reconciliation reports on due date.

Steps regarding the cheques that exceeded
06 months had been taken i terms of

Financial Regulations.

ic)

Guideline No. 5.2 in_the Procurement
Guideline for  procurement of _ the
Medical Equupment for 2007

Although Technical Evaluahion
Commutice for purchases  except
purchasing at urgent and essental events
must be consisted of a representative
from the Mimsiry of Health, a

representative from the State
Pharmaceutical Corporation, oo

consultants possessing mimmmum relevant

cxperitse and a represcntative nominaied
from the General Treasury, members had

Sn Jayvawardancpura Hospital consists of
1,067 beds. The need of purchasing could
be divided mto 2 parts.

I. Local tender boards purchasmg upto Rs.
25 milhion.

Departmental tender boards purchasing
upto Rs. 25-200 mallwon

[

Many purchases done 1n the hospital were
below Rs. 25 mullion. When appointing
Techmical Evaluaton Commuttees for these
purchasing, we have acted in complance
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not been appomnted at purchasmg relating
to surgical equipment amounting o Rs.
1.9 mulhon and X-Ray System
cquipment amountmg to Rs. 9,76 millon
according to that.

with Guideline No. 2.8.5 in the Procurement
Guidelines, to date. The method adopted
presently in other Teaching Hospital i,
appontment of officers for Techmcal
Evaluation Committees relevant to local

tender boards, calling guotatons, submt

those prices to local tender boards. If tender
exceeds the local tender board’s limit, 1t 1s
submutted to the departmental tender board
and next obtan approval. This process had
been camied out by Sn Jayawardancpura
Hospatal with the objective of funchioning
its affairs efficiently and competiively with
private sector.

Composiion of the commitiee members of
the Technical Evaluation Committee has
been descnbed the Gudeline No. 5.2.1 i
the Procurement Gudehine issued o

purchase drugs and medical equipment. But
it had not been specified that the

composition aforesmd belongs to which
procurement hmit. Accordingly, 1t may be

relevant to all procurements from local
procurement  purchasing board limut to
cabmet procurement board.

But 1t 15 difficult to implement that
composition for the procurements for Sn

Jayawardancpura General Hospatal. As itis
very difficult to meet the mimistenal level

officers and drugs and medical equipment
must be purchased ofien, it can’t be camed
out practically.

However, steps will be taken to seck
advices from the Addibonal Secretary
{Procurement) to the Mmstry of Health,
submit this matter to the Board of Directors
and refer to the Public Finance Mimistry
regarding applying this proviso for the
procurements carnied out heremafier.

(d)

Letter No. DMS/1758-Vol.1 dated 10

October 2016 ssued by the Department

of Manapement Services

Although proposals to restructure the
approved staff must be prepared, referred
to the Salanes and Cadre Commussion
and obtamed approval from the

Although task of prepanng the recrustment
procedures assigned to an external party, it
was unsucessful and steps were taken to get
it achieved by an imternal party which also
was  unsuccessful. Accordingly, a
committee consists of external officers from
the nstitution had been appomnted m terms
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Department of Management Services,
steps had not been taken as aforesaid
even as at 31 December 2022

of the Board Decision No. 469:12:02 to
solve the human resources isswes. It has

been decided to prepare the recrutment

procedure based on the information given
after solving the human resources 1ssues.

(e}

Public Fimance Circular No.  PFD
082019 dated 17 December 2019

Although purchasing under shoppmg
procurement must be camed out via

clectromic  svstem  with effect from
January 2020 by the entity, steps had not

been token as aforesaid even as at the
date of this report.

In terms of Circular No. 0R2019 dated
17.12.2019, nccessary steps to implement
the electromec govemment procurement
method 1 Sn Jayawardanepura General
Hospatal too have been taken. Accordingly,
a Board paper was submutted to the Board
meeting held onm  16.12.2020 secking
approval to get registration for clectromc
government  procurement method and to
appoint the Supply Officer as the Limson
Officer for that Approval for above had
been granted at the Board mectng held
25.02.2021.

We were unable to act duly relating o
above duc to the pandemic situabion
prevalled that ttme. However, necessary
steps regarding thas wall be taken 1n future.

It had been delayed to mmplement thas
micthod due to the circumstance prevailed in
the country and adequate matiers regarding
the relevant method had not been studied.
But steps will be taken w follow this
method m future.

Presently hospital has been registered m the
website of the Mimstry of Finance and steps
will be taken to study the matiers relating o
procurement process and adhere to this
method very soon. Further, large number of
registered supphiers of Sn Jayawardancpura
General Hospital had been registered in the
website of the Mmistry of Finance. Steps
will be taken to mform the remaimng
suppliers too to register here.

iclinc Mo 23 m 1l icline T
Statutory  Govermance _in__the  Public
Enterpnises Circular No. 012021 dated
16 November 2021

Although purchasing under shoppmg
procurement must be camed out via
clectromc  svstem with  effect  from
January 2020 by the entity, steps had not

First draft of the three vears” strategic plan
has alrcady been prepared and will be
submitted to the COPE on 25.05.2023
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been taken as aforesmid even as at the
date of this report.

[
a
[

Non-complance with powers, tasks and
functions of the Board, according to the

requirement contained i Section 12 (g)
of the MNational Audit Act No. 19 of
2018,

Steps will be taken to make aware of the
relevant officers regarding the matters
contamed n the National Audit Act, to
funchon all affurs m the hospital
comphance with the powers, tasks and
activities 1n optimum way according to the
act by identifving the defects and to correct
them.

[
a
=

According to the requirement contained
m Section 12 (h) of the National Audit
Act No. 19 of 201, Commssion’s
resources had not been procured and used
cconomically, efficiently and
productively within relevant tme penods
m comphance with relevant rules and

regulations except followmg
observations.

(a)

The confract of removing waste which
had been awarded to the private company
at Rs. 465 milhon for the wyear
2020/2021 had been awarded at Rs. 7.25
milbon for the year 202272023
Following matters regarding that are
observed.

Although quantity of normal mixed
waste mn the hospatal removed per day 5

between 400-500 Kg. which had been
identified by the Public Health Inspector.

it was observed that a lormy to which
could be loaded 5000 Kz amves daily

to the hospatal in terms of the agreement.

Accordingly, a loss had been occurred to
the hospatal because procurement had not
been done studying the quantity of waste
collects in the hospital and sdentifving
the hospital’s requirement, before to call
tender.

Although this contract had been awarded in
this manner, 1t had been identified at a
supervision carmed out later that a financial
loss may be incurred to the hospital through
this process and negotiation has presently
been mitiated with the agreed company.
Discussion regarding a method of disposing
waste was held at Maharagama Divisional
Scoretanat m the presence of the relevant
contractor, Director of Apesksha Hospital to
which he provides services and officers of
Maharagama Divisional Secretanat. It 1s

expected to amve at a final decision about
disposing of waste once the decisions taken

at said discussion 15 implemented.

Il

Although lorry must be amved withm
prescribed time to remove the waste, it
was observed according to the sample
test that 70 days had not been amved
within prescnbed time and therefore the

This mater has presently been corrected inio
a good extent after informimg to armve at the
duc ime, 3.00 pm. — 6.00 pm. {except fow
days on unavoidable reasons) by the
hospital and do that dutv.
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duc supervision process had not been
carried out n terms of Section 7(b) in the
agreement.

Photocopies of two pages of the note book
left at the hospital to mark afier amval of
the Comfactor covenng January and
February months have submitted herewith
to confirm above.

The comfactor when 1t amving daily to the
hospital to remove the waste 15 firstly
checked by the secunty division and next
date of armval of said vehicle, nme, dnver’s

signature and the sccunty officer’s signature
who checked that velicle are placed.

After amvmg to the temporary waste
collecting place and when loading waste,

these works are properly done under a
seccurity  officer and the Pubhc Health

Inspector who 15 on duty on that day.

i

In terms of Guidelne 54.8 in the

Procurcment Guidelne, although a
performance security which must  be

valid for 28 days afier the date of the
contract expected to be completed, the
relevant penod had not been covered by

the securnity produced.

I admit that this had been occurred by
oversight. As payments of this contract arc
made after completon of the relevant task,
although performance bond was in deficat of
few davs, the nsk had been munimized.
However, attention regarding this will be
drawn at future tenders and act accordingly.

5]

In terms of the secunty service
agreement  dated 30 December 2020
relatmg to the year 202002021 entered
mto by and between the hospital and a
private company, the contract company
had been agreed to provide services for a
period of one year with effect from 01
November 220 at a contract pnice of Rs.
246 mllion per month.  Followmg
matters in this regard are observed.

The secunty service had been continued
for a penod of 14 months from tme to
time without an annual procurement and
steps had not been taken to enter mnto
service agreements at 2 pccassions, as
prescribed.

This contract had been awarded to LRDC
which 15 a government company. Although
procurement  achvitics relaing to  this
contract had been initiated before 4 months
to expire the existing confract, we were
compelled to extend the existing contract
due to delay m obtaiming bidding documents
and bidding evaluation matters. As this
contract had been extended at  five
occasions, we were unable to =sign the
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agrecment at two occasions.  Instructions to

avold such oversights have already been

gIven.

I

In terms of Section 2{c) m the service
agreement, although it had been stated
that copies of the receipts ssued for the
payment of contnbutions 1w the
Emplovees Provident Fund and the
Emplovees Trust Fund must be submtted
by the service providing company, the
payments had been made without getting
the relevant conformations.

Steps will be taken to get the payment
confirmation certificates from the relevant
service provider to confirm the payment of
Emplovees’ Providet Fund  and
Emplovees” Trust Fund contnbutons and
submit to the audit.

i

As stated in the service agreement for
year 2021/2022, the npumber of
emplovees to be deploved in the day shaft
is 42 and it was observed that the number
employees engaged in duty within 07
mionths 1n the year 2022 was at a range of
21 - 28. Accordngly, it was problematc
whether proper secunty services =
rendered by the relevant company, as
expected.

Fines are charged from the amount pad
monthly for the less numbers of employees
and mnstruction arc oficn given to maimntamn

the prescribed number of emplovees.

]

Cleaming service (jamtonal service) m
Sn Javawardancpura General Hosital
relatmg 1o year 2021/2022 and
2022/2023 had been awarded to 2
companics. Followmg matiers regarding
the continuance of cleamng services m
the hospital, getting this service by the
hospital and payments made for that are
observed.

Although it had been included n the
service agreements as a condition that all
cleaning chemicals used when providing
services must have been approved and
confimed their quahty by Sn Lanka
Standards Insitution or Technical
Institwtion, 1t had not been cvaluated
whether the cleanmg chemicals agreed to
provide by the ldders are in compliance
with the SLS Standards and the prnces
submitted for those chemicals by the
bidders are fair, because the laboratory
reports needed to confirm the above
matter had not been demanded by the

bidding documents.

It 5 admtted that attention regarding this
matter had not been drawn when calling
tenders and the samples provided when
implementing tenders have been referred o
ITI for the relevant test.

However, necessary mstructions to consader
when evaluating matters contamed 1 the
tender conditions in future tenders have
been given.
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I.

Quahity of the chemicals must had not
been confirmed from time to time n
terms of the agreement because the
mimimum crterias about the cleanmg
chermicals which must be provided by the
suppliers had not been  established.
According to the laboratory test reports
ssucd in relation to & cleamng chemicals
by the Technical Institute, it had been
confirmed that 5 chemucals were not
according to the prescnbed standard. It

was observed that the payvment of Rs.
665,630 made to the suppher by the
hospital for chemicals for the agreement
vear of 2021/2022 was an non-cconomic
payment and Rs. 338 000 had also been
paid for December 2022 and January
2023 for getting chemicals without an
mspection about standard, relarng to the
agreement year of 2022/2023 too.

We admit that attention towards this matier
had not been drawn when calling tenders
and the samples provided when
implementing tenders have been referred to
ITI for relevant test.

However, mnstructions have been given to
take nmecessary steps to use chemicals with
standards for evaluation of the matters

contamed 1n the tender conditions, 1n future
tender affairs.

it

Chemical stocks received monthly by the
hospital had been kept uder the custody
of Public Health Inspector in the hospital
and the cleaming service providmg
mstitution and there were vanances at a
range of 5 liters to 160 hiters than the
stocks that were mm the hospital and
between the stocks indicated on that day
by the computer system n the hospital
which was detected at the physical
mspection camed out on 25 January
2023 in this regard.

Relevant goods receiving and 1ssuing had
not been updated because computer system
had not been provided to the Public Health

Inspecior’s office.  Instructons will be

given to officers to avoud from repeating
such inconsistent stock balances by

updating the computer sysicm relevant o
cleaning chemicals.

v,

In terms of Condition No. (d) in the
agreement, although cleamng chemicals
and equipment provided by the supplier
must be ssued to the heads of each
division by the storckeeper in the hospital
as per there requirement, the cleanmg
materials had been  1ssued to  the
supplier’s stores in the hospatal contrary
to above and without a basis. Stocks that
were 1n the supplier’s stores had not been
taken into consideration thereby. Due to
this reason, a stock of Glass Cleaner of
245 lters relating to the previous year
agreement vear was n the suppler's
storc and observed that there were
cleaning chemicals 1n the stores which

These cleaning matenals are ssued by mam
stores only to the heads of departments in
the hospital. Materials such as brooms,
mops are ordered by heads of departments
via computer system and next those
materials are 1ssued by the maimn stores.
Mever these matenals had been provided to
the supplier’s stores without a basis.

Stock of glass cleaner (to which pavment
had not been made) brought additionally by
the supplier relevant to previous agreement
vear had been handed over o the new
supplier without takmg back with him.

Cleaming matenals are 1ssued to the Public
Health Inspector by mmn stores and

chemicals to the supplier’s stores are ssued
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had been exceeded the monthly
requirement. Accordingly. there was a
nsk of vanous irregulanities relatmg to
the cleaming matenals such as allowmg
supplier to provide cleaming chemicals
and equipment which must be provided
monthly to the hospital at his own
discretion, availability of cleaming
chemicals stocks which are not disclosed
by the hospital’s computer system,

allowing o contnue the cleanmg
chermcals which were exceded the
monthly requirement  without  due

SUpETVISIon clc.

by the Public Health Inspector based on the

requirement.

Future orders are considered by main stores
considening the stocks available in the main

stores and the orders made by heads of

departmients.

However, instructions have been grven to
the relevant officers to act about cleaning
matenials with a proper supervision.

Lrg )

The chnical waste bummg machine
which had been purchased on 03
Movember 2016 from a private institution
at a pnce of Rs. 23.54 mullion {with
VAT) had been used by a prnvate
mstitution and the hospital staff as well
and bumt the chimcal waste since
December 2016 to date.  Followmg
matters at the mspection made with
regard to the utilizabon and mamntanance
of this machine were disclosed.

When purchasing the machme, s cost
mcluding mamicnance services had not

been evaluated because it had been stated
that the machine’s maintenances works
could be done by the hosptal’s
maintenance staff at a low cost and
cfficiently. The Techmical Evaluation
Committee had been recommended to
purchase only machine without a
maintenance  service  agreement  and
therefore the tender of lowest prce
amounting to Bs. 26.35 milhon to which
mcluded the mamtenance service of 6
years after the 02 vears’ warranty penod.
In terms of the service agreement entered
mto, Rs. 4.01 milhon had been spent by
the hospital as service chages as at the
date of auwdit viz 10 February 2023,
Accordingly, the Techmical Evaluation
Committee’s decsion to save Rs. 10
mitlhon to the hospital within a penod of
06 years duc to evaluation without
adding the maintcnance expenses of the

This machine had been purchased in 2016.
Four bidders had been participated this
Following pnces had been
submitted according to said buds.

procurement.

Cost of the chga:;]ffj
Budder Machine
Rs. Yars
Rs.
M.w.
i 21 21090000 | 10605 450 00
Holdings
Analytical -
[mstrument | 2552252252 T
Ltd
Far East
Shred | 7.750,000.00 | 12487 680.00
Servicing
Ltd
F&W_- 31 E6, [N,
Associate IR 507 RI0.TS o ' '
Int. Ltd

According to the prnices above, Techmcal
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machine when purchasing it, had not

been effectve.

Evaluation Commuittee recommendation had
been grven based only on the cost of the
machme. Accordingly, M W Holdings had
been recommended by which submatied the
sccond lowest pnce. Far East Service by
which submitted the lowest had been

rejected.

But service cost of 05 wvears of the
recommended  mstiwbon had  been
considered at the Procurement Commutice
meeting.  The said insttution had been
agreed at a discussion held to provide
traming fo the hospital staff and approval
had been pranted by the Procurement
Commutice without disregarding service
cost accordingly.

But after ending the warranty penod of two
vears, although all services must be camied
out by the hospital, lack of emplovess had
been occurred due to reasons such as a
suitable service team had not been tramned,
retirement of emplovees 1n Bio Medical
Engincening unit, imtemal transfers and
resigning from service ete. Partics had been
entered into annual service  agreements
because the B Medical Engineer had been
informed the hospital that mamntenance
works of the machine can’t be camed out
properly.  Agreements had been executed
extrancously o the prnces mentioned n the
basic tender. Hospital was compelled 1o
enter into agreement with this istitubion
because these services must be done
compulsorly and not altematives.

I admit that the Techmical Evaluation
Recommendations and  Procurement
Committee approvals i this basic tender
had not been exercmed  effectively.
Accordingly, the service agreement had
been implemented based on the reasons
such as nadequacy of hospital staff and
non-availability of other alternatives and
amount of Rs. 10 million expecied o save
couldn’t save.
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i

Clinical wastes are dailv bumt by the
climical  waste burnmg  machine
{Incincraior) and the concrete piis to
which disposed the ash remamm from
above process have already been filled
and therefore. ash had presently been
disposed without a proper method
harmfully to the hospital environment. It
was observed at the audit that health
threat could be arisen wihtin upcomming
ramny scason duc to collecting of ash
removed from the machine at the open
space.  Accordingly, there 15 a nsk of
losing the permission to operate the
waste buming machine based on the
breach of conditions when renewing the

Environment Protection License (EPL)
which 15 obtained from the Central

Environment Authontv, due to above
reason.

As the burmning machine {Chmical Waste
Incmeratorj aforesmd  dwdn’t  funchon
properly, 1t was repaired at several imes by
the relevant institution but was not
successful.  Hence, as the climical waste
don’t bum properly. half bumnt particles
contaming Carbon remam m  large
guantifics in addibon to ash. Hence ash pats
are rapidly filling and disposing of ash had
become as a problematic matter. As this
situation continues due to the machine’s
mefficiencies, we have med to give those
ash to an mstitution by which manufactures
blocks but was not successful. Based on
this circumstance, we have met the
Chairman of Central Environment Authonty
as the last altemative and discussed this
matter with lim.  The matter was informed
him i wnting and he agreed to take those
as to Samtary Land Fill Dompe which 1s
implemented by the Central Environment

Authonty. Samples of those ash had been
sent to [T Institution to test whether heavy
metals contan therem. [ expect that the
Central Environment Authority wall take
necessary steps to take out the ash on
receipt of the report aforesaid 1s recerved.
The EPL certificate relevant to this burning
machme has already been recerved and had
been requested for the SWM certificate.

Contract of constructing a three storeyed
building for the hospital work shop and

to continue offices for the garden
cleaming staff had been awarded at a
price of 87.02 mulhon {without VAT) on
09 Movember 2016, Twelve contamners
had been rented at a monthly rental of
Rs. 257,000 because the bulding m
which the work shop cstabhished had
been demolished at the bepmmg of
consruction of the bulding aforesmd. An
additonal rent of Rs. 1439 for 36 months
gs at 31 December 2022 had been
mcurred to  the hospital  because
construction works of the bwlding had
not been completed by Apnl 2018
terms of the agreement.

I agree with this statement.

This buwlding was constructed afier
demolishing an old builldmg. Contaners
rented are using for the tasks camed in the
old building. Rent period of the containers
had to be extended because the relevant
confract was not  completed within
prescribed penod. Thas 15 a result of an
unforeseen meident Further, all
construciions amidst Cowvid-19  pandemic
were not functioned duly and this matter too
had been mainly affected for the delay.
However, few relevant contamers had
released and 06 other contamners have been
release by now.
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Contamners using presently are as follows.
01 Contamers obtamned on rent basis

*For P.H.L -02
*For janitonal division -02
*For garden cleaming division -02
+*For laboratory -0
*For kitchen foods -0
03
02. Contapers for the hospital
*For Accounts division -0l
*For main stores division - 02
*For MRO division -4
* For P H.L -l
*For male Nursing staff - 01
(3
03 Contamers for SPC -0

03,

Other matters

el

Following matters were observed at the
mspection of using 4 cqupment for
patient sample tests, existed at the
brochemustry laboratory.

Data i the equpment of Fully
Automated Analyser-Abbott  Architect
C2000 had not been taken to another data
storing unit (taking Backup) once m a
precise ime, considenng the daily use of
the equipment aforesaid.

Although data stonng capacity relevant to
the Abbott Architect C B000 equipment
stated under this number 15 about 50000,
method of transfernng all test data to the
hospital’s data stores sysiem at the same
time 15 presently in progress.  Mecessary
data could be obtaned via hospatal’s data
system. Large number of tests m the Bio
Chemical Division are carmed out by this
machime so that the data value of 50,000
could be exceeded.

The date of downloading information would
be whatever, mformation are obtaned for
the precise time limat (from 01 to 30V31 1n
every month. )

I

It was also unable to check whether how
many tests had been carned out using the
cquipment because enterning data inio the
equipment, altering and deleting them
could be done wsing ADMIN password
mstcad MLT password by the laboratory

A common password namely ADMIN had
been provided by the the company by which
supplied the relevant machine only to access
to the relevant machine and other machines.
It 15 impossible to access to the hospital’s
information  svstem  using the password
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to get accesses to the equipment.

aforesmd. Even they delete the tests carned
out by the machmne, those data stores in the
hospital’s data system.

I expect to take necessary steps to update
the systems that are required for the all tests
to be camed out only via Barcode method
in future. Thereby, many matters stated
here could be corrected.

Hi

The reactives and other consumable
matenals issuing book maintained by the
laboratory had not been updated withim
the wvear under review so that the
nformation such as; on which days
reacitves for the equpment had been
ssucd, how many tests had been carmed
out using old reactives at the evemt of
ssuing a reactive newly, the reasons if
expected number of tests coldn’t obtain
from the reactive and information to
confirm whether they are supervised by
the hospital management were not

posscssed by the hospital

Reactives from siores are issued only by
SYSTOLIC system. Number of tests
carmied out up to date could be obtmined
from the system aforesaid. Accordmgly, the
number of tests carned out by one set of
reactives could be obtained. These data are
required to measure the Prncmg, Auditing
and  Performance. The hospaal
management 15 able to  obtam the
information  reguired for that  from
SYSTOLIC system.

Iv.

The relevant data had been entered mto
the hospital information svstem at 11
occassions without a precise time frame
by way of confirming the accuracy and
timehness of the mformation provided by
the information system established 1in the
hospital.

A crrcular had been issued drecting that
corsumption of consumables of ecvery
division in the hospital must be entered 1o

the computer system on the 25" day of cach
month and advised to act accordig to the

circular.

According to the information system m
the hospatal, 203 reactive sets {of which
cost was Rs. 16.19 mullion) had been
used for 27 types of tests carmed out by
the Fully Automated Chemistry
Analyser-Abbott C 800 equipment.
Although number of tests could be

carried out according to the standard use
5 about 291,164, the number of tests
carmied out according to the Monthly
Statistics Shects was 127,804 which was
a minimum percentage of 44% out of the
standard use. The hospatal management
had not been pard 1ts attenbion towards
the effective use of laboratory equipment
through providing services for pexternal
paticnis.

Monthly reports about tests camed out are
prepared based on the data stored i sad
machine

MLTs don't know a techmical method of
detecting whether certan amount of data
after exceeding data volume had been
cleared off awtomatically from the machine.
Accordingly, 1 will find out a swtable
micthod to increase the memory capacity n
the machine from 200,000 to 300000 as

proposed by the audit query.

Our opimon 15 that other matters stated

below may also affect the chanpe observed
above.

113



Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital

L. Although QC samples apply daily in the
machme, the quantity of reagents incur for
that are not included m the hists containing
the number of tests carmned out.

I1. Using Cahbrators

Even after avoiding techmical errors while
machme 15 in operation, calibrators must be

apphied when calibraton limit mn the
machme has been exceeded and when new
sets of reactives include to the machine.
Although reagents for this are apphed
separately by the machine for testes, those
are not applhied for monthly data reports.

IIl. Many ftesting cqupment are

disconnected within a short time at power
outages in the laboratory.

If such thmg happens when relevant
machme 15 operated m maximum capacity
in active condibon using samples, the smd
process will be totally faled. Then power
must be re-supplied and all tests must be
Ordered agamn and all reactives incurred
previously will be again incumred. Those
mformation  also won't be applied for
monthly reports. Regarding this situation,
we infend o amalgamage all machines
the laboratory via a Central UPS system.
But this had not been done up to date so that
large quantity of reactives are damaged and
issuc relatmg to the durability of these
machmes anse. Therefore, [ will take steps
to mummize the wastage aforcsaid via a
Central UPS system.

IV. Repeat Analysis
Repeat analysis has to be done o ssuc

morefully accurate reports based on the
matters such as nature of the sample,

quantitative nature, chimcal information and
mconsisiency of test mformation.

Although samples are re-applied by deleting

the onginal barcode at such events, those
mnformation don't include in the monthly

document as a separate test.

Also in case an error curve 1s received at an
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event of higher result value must be
received, a dilution test must be carmed out
for saxd sample and such testing events also

don't include mm the monthly testing
documents.

V. Repeat barcode processing
We have also observed that one barcode 1s

tested mn the machine several imes at once
duc to defects in obtammg samples from
wards.

But those are included in the dama
information for monthly reports as one test.
Few such events have annexed as examples.

V1. When calculating test information for

audit query, the number of reactive tests
obtained as at 31 December 2022, the
maximum number of tests could be carned
out by the machine had been obtmined
through the value obtained by multiplying
by the number of tests could be carmed out
by saud sets. But the types of reactives
obtained after 31 December won't become
zero 10 the laboratory as at 01 January.
Those are really stored n refngerators n
the laboratory, pnor o use.

Whe prepanng audit report, the reactive sets
remaing in the refregerator had not been
taken into consideration which may be an
oversight in the audit query.

(b)

Details relating to the amount paid to the
Doctors and other staff as professional
charges relevant to the paying wards
from 2020 to 2022 and the income
received from those wards contain in the
table below.

2020

Fs.

2021

Hs.

M2

Es.

The
procss
ronal
fee
charge

FEk 41,608

e | LTS

314332018

Incom

recelv

ed

from

D3I BT

e T LRI
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paying
wards

G118 T

Total | sepgae ST |

Following matiers regardmg this are
observed.

Professional charges for the surgenes and
tests camed out extrancously to the duty
time usmg hospital resources had been
determmed at the discretion of Specialist
Doctors without a standard or precise
policy and steps to establish standards of

determmmg  these charges for  the
hospital had not been taken by the

managemenit.

Professional charges are regulated by the
Private Health Services Regulatory Council
(PHRC). An cffort taken by sayd authonty
to prepare and mmplement a method of
regulating prnices of these charges had been
averied by some personne] who opposed it
through a WRIT Order. Steps wall taken
according to the judgment of the case once
it concluded.

I

Rs. 6.66 milhon had been charged as
professional charges for 79 surgenes
camed for the patients in paying wards
within normal duty ttme at the mam
operation theatre in 2022,

Regulating of these affairs have been
imhiated prepanng a diect  coordination
method between operation  theatre  and
accounts  division. Accordingly, this
process will be duly implemented in future.

il

Surgenies had been camed out by 10
external Doctors who don’t belong to the
hospital staff within vear 2022 usmg
hospital resources and Rs. 23.78 milhon
had been charged by those Doctors from
paticnds as professional charges withm
said year. Only service charge of 0.15%
out of above amount had been charged to
the hospital.  Approvals relating to
engage 1n private service 1n the hospral
by external Doctors and charging of
professional fees had not been submotted
to the audit It was observed that the
paticnis’ responsibility 15 assigned to the
hospital because the hospital had not

been entered imto an agreement with
those Doctors.

Although relevant service charge (0.15)
from professional charpes were charged as a
management expendiure, other expenses
incure for this are charged from the patient
and 35% of profit for that 1s charged to the
hospital. Service of Specialist Doctors o
whom are not pmd salanes and other
allowances by the hospatal could be given to
the patients by this method and a financial
profit may be get to the hospatal and patient
care services may also be enhanced as well.

Steps are taken to submit information about

Spccialist Doctors who come extrancously,
to the Board of Directors and obtan

approval for same.

Iv.

Rs. 11028 mallion had been paid m 2022
as professional charges for the Assistant
Doctors and other staff on a Board

decsion without cabinet approval.

As an example, 1t 15 ecssential to obtan
service of a supportive team extrancously to
the duty ttime when carming out a surgery
by a Specialist Doctor.  Overtime for this
peniod 15 not paid from government funds
and the relevant expenditure 5 reimbursed
through Out of Pocket method. The patient
gives his’her consemt in wnting for this
charge.
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Service charge credited to the board's
mcome out of the total professional
charges amounting to Rs. 514.55 mllion
which had been paid o the staff withn
year 2022 was only Rs. 773,312, Steps
had not been taken by the management to
make NECEsSary amendments
appropnately to the service charge of
0.15% which 15 coming since year 1999,

Although relevamt service charge (0.15)
from professional charges were charged as a
management expenditure, other expenscs
incure for this are charged from the patient
and 15% of profit for that 15 charged to the

hospital.

VI

Payee taxes on the professional charges
refunded to the Specialist Doctors and
other staff had not been charged and total
of the payee taxes which had not been
deducted as aforesaid for 2014, 2015 and
2016 was Rs. 108.52 mallion.

An appeal regarding this matter = heard in
the Appeal Commussion and further affairs
will be camed out accordmg to the
judgement given thereby.

(c)

An officer to cover the duties of the
Deputy Director which was vacant had
been recruited on 28 July 2021 on
temporary basis on a Board decision

without approval of the Public Service
Commussion and R=. 1.19 million and Rs.
298 mlon had been pad for
allowances and salanes respectively
relating to an appointment of covermg
duties contrary to Section 137 of
Chapter 11 in the Establishment Code
List of additonal duties assigned relatmg
to the pavment of Rs. 2.69 million for the
additional duty allowances had not been
submiticd to the audit. The officer had
been engaged in the service above 1 %
vears by now and steps had not been

taken to fill the vacancy on permanent
hasis even as at the date of audid viz 24

March 2023.

Although it has been mentioned 1n the letter
sent by the Minstry of Health as “Duty
Covering Up” m the post of Deputy
Director, this officer had been engaged for
permanent duties in the post of Deputy
Director under Full Time basis. Powers of
the Secretary to the Mimstry of Health had
been used for above and we must be
informed to obtamn approval from the Public
Service Commission to give him an acting
appointment.  Although smd information
have not been recerved by us up to date, we
have informed by the Minstry of Health 1o
pay him salanes and s salary information
also had been sent us.

I will stop his acting allowance and recover
it from the date 1t was pard. We had no

option to recrut him on permenant basis
because recruitment of permenant officers
had been stopped by government circulars
within past penod.

Steps will be taken to recrut a permanent
officer for the post of Deputy Director.

id

In terms of the Extra Ordinary Gazette
No. 2080/22 dated 16 July 2018, relating
to the allowances mcreased by the
government for the employees engaged
i the cleaning service industry, Rs. 2.30
million had been pard to the suppher by
Sn Jayawardanepura General Hospatal as
arrcars of cleaming services  without
obtaining recaipts  to  confirm  the

Officer who certified the payment of Rs.
2,30,335.98 on 04 Scpicmber 2019 to Ultra
Clean (Pvt) Limited who 15 a janitonal
supplier had been left the service from
Accounts Division. Letters and documents
confirmmg the contnbution payments for
Emplovees’ Procident  Fund  and
Emplovees” Trust Fund by relevant supplier
had been submitted. The relevant payments
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payment of contnbutons to  the
Employees” Trust Fund for the penod

from August 2018 to October 2018,

had been pard accordingly.

(el

Following matters which was observed at
the mspechon of files relating to the legal
actions taken for the cases of the hospial

are stated.

Regarding professional charpes pavable
to the Specalist Doctors for years 2008
and 2009, a frand had been detecied and
conducted a prehiminary mvestigation m
2012, According to the report of the
relevant displinary inguiry, 1t had been
directed to recover the cheated amount of
Rs. 1.05 mlhon and court measures shall
be taken to recover the same n casc
falled 0 recover within one month
Although it had been informed that court
measures will be taken to recover the
said amount, it had not been recovered
cven as at the end of the year under
review and action had been filed in the
Distnict Court of Nugegoda after a delay
of 02 years. Although letters addresing
the head of the mstitution had been sent
by the Department of Attorney General
advising to produce the relevant
evidences for the case on 15.05.2020,
24.06.2020, 12.08.2020 and 16.04.2021,
more than one vear had been consumed

to provide the information.

Reason to delay filmg of action can't be
detected from the filee It scems when
reading this file that the case had been filed
im year 2015. No prescnption had been
accrucd because case had been filed within
prescribed penod.

As onginals of the documents mn this case
had not been provided properly, in order to
produce certified copies of the evidences
and documents submitted i the court, it
was a problem to confirm as true copies
witnessing the ongmals. We are informed
by the Attornecy General’s Department to
produce a list of evidences and documents
for the causes of action Nos. 02, 03 and 04
in the plamt. The former Admmstrative
Officer had been mformed from tme to
time o provide copies of the documents
nceded to confirm those causes of action.
Those documents had been immedately
provided to the Attomevy General's
Department on 06.01.2022.

I

An officer served as a Management
Assistant in Sn Javawardancpura General
Hospital had been  terminated from
service with cffect from 24 July 2013
after the prelimmary mvestigation and
disciplmary inquiry conducted regarding
a np-off made by him. According to the
case filed in Homagama Labour Trbunal
by the officer and the order delivered at
the appeal case nstituted by the hospital
relatmg to that, 1t had been informed that
the officer shall be reinstated on the same
post which he held, on the present salary
step, without service breaking, afier a
payment of Rs. 198 milhon
Accordingly, the hospital had to mncur an

The judgment of this case was to reinstate
the emplovee without service break, at the
same place she served, in the same post she
held, on the present salary step with past
salaries amountng to Rs 1,989 309/-
Accordingly, the emplover was compelled
to reinstate the employee with past salanes
in terms of the court order.




Annual Report - 2022

Wle expense of Rs. 1.98 mullion as
salancs for the peniod of the service

stopped.

i

According to the judgment of the case
filed in the Appeal Court by a former
officer (female) who held the post of
Staff Assistant agamnst suspending her
from service and deducting salanes based
on a Board decision, the officer had been
reinstated and the hospital was compelled
to pav Rs. 91985 for the salanes
deducted.

According to the judgment of the case
delivered by the Appeal Court filed by Mrs.
Kalyam Silva against Sn Jayawardancpura
General Hospatal, 1t had not been ordered to
remstate this officer and not ordered to grve
her the post 1n questioned to the officer.
Based on a decision taken by the Board of
Directors, the order had been given
mullifving only placing her on MN2 salary
step. Accordmgly, only demoting her in the
salary step had been nullified by the Appeal
Court.

Extract — Directive of the case
* Hence, | proceed to i=ssue a mandate in the
nature of a wnt of Certioran as praved for
in paragraph (d) of the praver of the Petition
of the Petitioner.
Moreover, | am not inclmed to grant other
rehefs as prayed for by the Petrhoner and 1
have amved at that decsion based on the
defense taken up by the Respondents. The
contention of the Respondents 15 that they
were compelled 1o suspend  the
appointments made o the post of “Staff
Assistant” as the required approval of the
Department of the Management Services
had not been obtained to establish the said
post of * Staff Assastant”.

I am awarc that the Public Sector cadre
management, remuneration  management
and consultancy are also among the
objectives of the Department of
Management Services. It 15 a pnme duty of
the smd Department to provide the
Mecessary management service assistance to
the Public Sector  Orgamizabons.
Accordingly, 1 take the view that this Court
should not trespass the authonty of the
Department of Management Services at this
stage substituting or recommending any
decsion of this Court for that of the sad
authority in reference to the change of
designations of SJIGH. It 15 the duty of the
Board of SJGH to resolve, accordmg to law,
the 1ssues on changing the designations of
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the employees.™
Extraction over

As we must work together with the
Department Management Services o take
decsions about this post, the Court has
mentioned clearly 1n 1ts judgment that no
unnecessary mterferences will be done.

Although building constructed with the
objective of continung the admimistrative
matters m the hospital had been taken
over on 08 May 2021, 1t had not been

used for the matter of objective even as at
the date of this report.

Although 1t was expected to usc it for
another task based on a Board decision, the
ground floor 15 presently used for the task
constructed based on the pnmary estimate.
Further, | has been planned to use the first
and second plan for the tasks in the primary
plan and approval of the Matonal Planning
Department has been received to use it for
Primary Care Centre, 1if needed. However,
as it could be used for the prescnbed task in
future and no addibonal cost 15 required for
the mternal plan.

£}

There were 16 vehicles claimed by Sn
Jayawardanepura Hosprtal and followmg
matters were detected at the audit
cxammation carmed out regarding those

vehicles.

As per the Natonal Budpet Circular No.
150, although 05 years had been lapsed
by recervin 06 vehicles to the hospital
from the Department of Natonal Budget
on a requed made by the Mmstry of
Health, steps had not been taken to
acquire those vehicled even as at the date
of this report.

The relevant informatbon had been
requested from the Mimstry of Health and
Bank of Ceylon. This acquisition had been
delaved due to delay of those information.
Steps will be taken to acquire those velickes
and add o the fixed assets register.

I

A vehicle received by this hospital from
the Minstry of Finance in 2018 had been
faced an scoident on 22 November 2019
and the responsible persons had not been
determmed by conducting investigations
m fterms of Fmancial Regulations.
According 0 an ecstimate dated 20
October 2022 amounting to Rs, 480 200
submitted by a prnivate company, the
vehicle had been sent for repair but 1t =
problematic  whether those expenses
could be covered by the insurance claim
because time above 03 vears had been
lapsed.

Steps will be taken about acoidents as per
Financial Regulation 102 and 104.
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i

Three vehicles claimed by the hospital
arc not I runmng posihon cven as at 10

March 2023 because repars of those

vehicle had not been camed out on due
dates.

According to a Parhamentary decision taken
within this penod regarding repairs of
government vehicles, this vehicle had also
been sent to Lakdiva Engincermg Company
of Mimstry of Transportaton on
07.02.2022. Often inquired via telephone
and met the top officials to accelerate the
reparrs.  But due to lack of spare parts of
these vehicles, ime had been consumed to
submit prices and we are informed by heads
of said imstitution that repairs will be camed
out forthwith receipt of the spare parts.

(h)

Two hundred tharty one (231) officers for
02 categones of posts excesdmg
approved cadre and 00 officers for 05
positions whach were not in the approved
staff had been appomnted as ar 31
December 2022 without seckmg approval
from the Department of Management
Services.

Last approval of the Department of
Management Services for sn
Jayawardencpura General Hospital staff had
been recerved by letter dated 10.10.2016.
Approval had been recerved from the
Department of Management Services o
recruit permanent employecs.

But Board approval 15 soughi when
recruiing for all posts (temporary

contract). Those vacancies in the hospatal
had been filled on the Board approval with

the objective of functioming the hospital’s
affairs efficiently, which was only 196

(1)

Following matiers were detected at the
audit examinatwon carmed out regardmg
additioal duty allowances. overtime and
holiday payments made for the medical
staff and nursmg and supplementary
mternm medical service staff.

(1)

A pohcy decimion had been taken by
cabmet decision No. 96/1347/120/143
dated 17 July 1996 to mamntain the salary
gap among varnous grades m  Sn
Jayawardancpura Hospital and the
parallel grades in the Ministry of Health
or parallel posts in other departments at
35%. As per the Board decision No.
402:02:17 dated 15 March 2018 and
under General Circular of the Mimstry of
Health, Rs 143.55 mulhon. Rs. 16845
million and Rs. 159.21 milhon had been
pard mm 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively
for additional allowances and overtime

allowances for the officers m medical.

Thirty five percent (35%) 15 added to the
basic salary when paving salanes for all
staff in the hospital. When payving salancs
for other officers other than medical and
nursing staff. overtime 15 paid dividing the
baszic salary to which included 35% by 240,
Medical officers” overtime rate per hour had
been determined as 1/80 and nursing staff as
1/160. Accordingly, the rate of overime
per hour had been determined by adding
35% to the rate mentioned in the circular
based on the Board approval.
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nursing and supplementary  medical
service adding 35% and placing at a
higher rate value than the allowance
granted by the circular. Information to
confirm whether a cabinet approval or
treasury approval with regard to above
had been obtamed, were not submutted to
the audat.

(1)

Comparing the hst of surgenes
maimntained 1n the main operation theatre
and payment vouchers for addibonal
duties of medical staff which were taken
as o sample test by the audit. Rs. 5.45
milion had also been charged as
professional charges by medical staff for
carrying oul opcrations cngaging m
private service within the period of
additional allowances obtained.

A direct coordination system had been

developed between operation theatre and
accounts division and mihated to regulate

these affars. Accordingly, the process will
be done 1 a proper manner in future.

(1)

At the sample audit exammmabion
conducted about hohday allowances for
medical staff, 1t was observed that
professional charges had been charged by
some medical officers engaging m
prvate service within the period of
holiday allowances obtained. According
to the list of surgenies of the paying
wards carmed out in the main operation
theatre which was taken as a sample fest,
the total of profession allowances
charged by 07 Doctors as aforesaid was
Rs. 2.96 million.

The smd 1ssue could also be solved at the

regulation mentioned above.

[£.)

The overall performance in the hospital within
vear under review and last 05 years 15 was as
follows.
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ok

Following matters in this regard are observed.

(1) Number of beds and utihization of beds m
the hospital i 2022 companng to year
2018 had been decreased by 5% and
11.5% respectively. Number beds and
utilization of beds in 2022 companing to
vear 2021 had been increased by 15%
and 1% respectively.

Companing with vear 2018, the number of
beds had been decreased by 11.5% in 2020

due to need of mcreasing the gap between
beds during the Covid pandemic period.

(n} | It was observed that progress of the tests
and surgenes camed out by the hospital
had been mercased and number of tests
and surgenes in 2022 comparing to year
2021 had been increased by 9470 and
1.99] respectively.

Agree with this observation.

(m) | Number of patients admitted to the
hospital. number of pabents attended to
climics and number of patients attended to
Out Patient Division comparing to year
2021 had been increased by ™%, 13% and
46% respectively.

Comparing with vear 2021, it 15 obscrved
that the number of patients admitied to the

hospital. number of patients who attended
the clinics and the number of patients who

attended the Out Patient Division had been
increased.
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6. Future Vision
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6.1 Expected Medium Term Actions to Improve the performance
of the Institute

¢ Reinstallation of Fire Protection & Detection system

¢ Car Park Gate Control system

¢ CCTV System

¢+ PABX System

¢ Construction of Generator Room for new building

¢ Purchase of new Transformer

¢ Purchase of Endoscopy system

¢ Local component for Japanese Grant

¢ Instruments for Dental Unit.

¢ Dental X-Ray Machine

¢ Angio CT Room.

¢ Cardiac Catheterization lab

¢ Develop a skills based training and development plan for all staff.

¢ Develop new Corporate plan

¢ Development of a hospital maintenance policy and standards with service level standards approved by
the board.

¢ Development of a hospital Pricing Policy approved by the board for all services with evolution every 3
months.

¢ Internal complaint management system to be implemented

¢ Train reception and help staff for best patient support and care.

¢ Costing and pricing policy for all services

+ Hospital Navigation Display Boards and sitemaps to make it more user friendly for patients.

¢ Staff welfare annual activity plan with monthly events.

¢ Setup a Business Promotion unit directly reporting to the director

¢ Develop a skills based training and development plan for all staff.

¢ Develop SOR for all position

¢ Establish WIT ‘s in all units
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